Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey
Chief Operating Officer
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
West Lancashire
L39 2DF

4 January 2021
TO: COUNCILLORS

I MORAN, Y GAGEN, V CUMMINS, G DOWLING, D EVANS,
J WILKIE, K WILKIE, K WRIGHT AND A YATES

Dear Councillor,
A meeting of the CABINET will be held on SKYPE on TUESDAY, 12 JANUARY 2021 at
7.00 PM at which your attendance is requested.
Yours faithfully

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey
Chief Operating Officer
AGENDA
(Open to the Public)
1.

APOLOGIES

2.

SPECIAL URGENCY (RULE 16 ACCESS TO INFORMATION
PROCEDURE RULES)/URGENT BUSINESS
If, by virtue of the date by which a decision must be taken, it has not
been possible to follow Rule 15 (i.e. a matter which is likely to be the
subject of a key decision has not been included on the Forward Plan)
then the decision may still be taken if:
a) The Chief Operating Officer, on behalf of the Leader, obtains the
agreement of the Chairman of the Executive Overview and
Scrutiny Committee that the making of the decision cannot be
reasonably deferred,
b) The Chief Operating Officer, on behalf of the Leader, makes

available on the Council’s website and at the offices of the
Council, a notice setting out the reasons that the decision is
urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred.
3.

PUBLIC SPEAKING
Residents of West Lancashire, on giving notice, may address the
meeting to make representations on any item on the agenda except
where the public and press are to be excluded during consideration of
the item. The deadline for submissions is 10.00am Friday 8 January
2021.

761 - 766

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
If a member requires advice on Declarations of Interest, he/she is
advised to contact the Legal & Democratic Services Manager in
advance of the meeting. (For the assistance of members a checklist
for use in considering their position on any particular item is included at
the end of this agenda sheet.)

767 - 768

5.

MINUTES
To receive as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of Cabinet
held on 10 November 2020.

769 - 774

6.

CONFIRMATION OF PROCEDURAL MATTERS: FLOODING &
DRAINAGE CABINET WORKING GROUP TERMS OF REFERENCE
To note that the Leader has agreed to revise the terms of reference for
the Flooding and Drainage Cabinet Working Group as requested at its
meeting held on 2 December 2020, as follows:
Functions
(a) To consider how a wider, more co-ordinate approach to managing
flooding and drainage across the whole Borough could be
achieved.
(b) To liaise with the Environment Agency, Lancashire County Council
as the Lead Local Flood Authority, United Utilities, neighbouring
Local Authorities, and any other relevant bodies on the issues of
flooding and drainage.
(c) To investigate any opportunities for relevant funding from
appropriate bodies.
(d) To give consideration to all the issues and options associated
with the establishment of an internal drainage board.
(e) To report back to the relevant Portfolio Holder and Cabinet and,
where appropriate future meetings of Full Council with its findings
and recommendations.

7.

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS

7a

Draft Revenue Budget 2021-22

775 - 780

(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor A Yates)
7b

Draft Medium Term Capital Programme
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor A Yates)

781 - 786

7c

Housing Account - Revenue and Capital Budget Setting
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor J Wilkie)

787 - 800

7d

Liverpool City Region Spatial Development Strategy - Second
Round Of Consultation
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor D Evans)

801 - 810

7e

Use of S106 Funds on Ormskirk Cycle and pedestrian
improvements
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor D Evans)

811 - 820

7f

Ormskirk Eastern Gateway proposals and use of S106 monies on
the Edge Hill Cycle Link
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor D Evans)

821 - 836

7g

Electric Vehicle Charge Point Provisions
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor J. Wilkie and Councillor D.
Evans)

837 - 842

7h

Final Report of Corporate & Environmental Overview & Scrutiny
Committee - Financial Inclusion Strategy Review
(Relevant Portfolio Holders: Councillors J Wilkie and A Yates)

843 - 884

7i

Quarterly Performance Indicators (Q2 2020/21)
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor I Moran)

885 - 902

8.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
It is recommended that members of the press and public be excluded
from the meeting during consideration of the following items of
business in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 (financial/business
affairs) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and as, in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption under Schedule 12A outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
(Note: No representations have been received about why the meeting
should be open to the public during consideration of the following items
of business).

PART 2 - NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
9.

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS

9a

Accommodation Strategy
(Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor A Yates)

903 - 920

9b

Purchase of Land at Fairlie, Skelmersdale
(Relevant Portfolio Holders: Councillors I Moran and J Wilkie)

921 - 928

We can provide this document, upon request, on audiotape, in large print, in Braille
and in other languages.

MOBILE PHONES: These should be switched off or to ‘silent’ at all meetings.
For further information, please contact:Jacky Denning on 01695 585384
Or email jacky.denning@westlancs.gov.uk

REMOTE MEETINGS – GUIDANCE
This guidance is designed to assist members when attending remote
meetings.
The guidance should be read in conjunction with the Council's Remote
Meetings Protocol and Procedures Rules
General
1. If members wish to speak on a particular item it will assist the smooth
running of the remote meeting if they indicate to the Chairman their wish
to speak in advance of the meeting.
2. Please join the meeting no later than 15 minutes before the start of the
meeting to ensure that the technology is working correctly.
3. It is a requirement of the remote meetings regulations that any member
participating in a remote meeting must be able to be heard (and if
practicable also be seen) by all other members, officers and public
speakers participating in the meeting and, in turn, be able to hear (and if
practicable see) those persons.
4. It is also a requirement that the meeting be live broadcast and so any
camera (video-feed) should show a non-descript background and
members should take care to ensure that no exempt or confidential
papers can be seen in the video-feed.
5. At the start of the meeting please ensure that your microphone is muted
and your video feed (if available on your device) is paused. Please
remember to unmute your microphone (and unpause your video feed if
available) when invited to speak by the Chairman!
6. At the start of the meeting the Member Services Officer will read out which
Members and Officers are present. The attendance of members will be
recorded.

7. Please remember to mute your mic/pause your video feed when you’re
not talking.
8. Only speak when invited to by the Chair.
9. Please state your name before you make an address.
10. If you’re referring to a specific page or slide mention the page or slide
number.
11. In the event of failure of the live broadcast then the Chairman will
immediately adjourn the meeting until such time as the live broadcast is
restored.
12. In the event that a member's individual remote connection should fail, the
Chairman will call a short adjournment to determine whether the
connection can be re-established (either by video technology or
telephone connection). If connection cannot be restored after a
reasonable period of time then the presumption is that the meeting
should continue, providing the meeting remains quorate.
13. If connection to a member is lost during discussion of an item of business
at a regulatory meeting (planning and licensing committees) that member
will not be able to vote on that item (unless that part of the discussion
during which connection was lost is, in the view of the Chairman, capable
of being repeated for the benefit of the member concerned).
Public speaking
14. Any member of the public participating in a meeting remotely in exercise
of their right to speak must be able to be heard (and if practicable also be
seen) by members, officers and public speakers participating in the same
item of business and, in turn, be able to hear (and if practicable see)
those persons.
15. The Member Services Officer will mute the member of the public once
they have spoken and remove them from the remote meeting on the
instruction of the Chairman once the relevant item of business has been
dealt with. Note: members of the public will be able to view/listen to the
remainder of the meeting via the live broadcast.
Voting

16. Unless a recorded vote is called by a member, the method of voting will
be, at the discretion of the Chairman, by:



General assent by the meeting (where there is no dissent); or
By the Member Services Officer calling out the name of each member
present with members stating "for", "against" or "abstain" to indicate their
vote when their name is called. The Member Services Officer will then
clearly state the result of the vote (to be confirmed by the Chairman)

17. Details of how members voted will not be minuted, unless a recorded
vote is called for prior to the vote taking place.
Declarations of Interest
18. Any member participating in a remote meeting who declares a
disclosable pecuniary interest, or pecuniary interest that would normally
require them to leave the room in which the meeting is taking place must
leave the remote meeting. Their departure will be confirmed by the
Member Services Officer who will invite the relevant member to re-join
the meeting at the appropriate time.
Exclusion of the Press and Public
19. There are times when council meetings are not open to the public when
confidential, or “exempt” items (as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972) are under consideration. The Member Services
Officer will ensure that there are no members of the public in remote
attendance and the live broadcast is ended, once the exclusion has been
agreed by the meeting for that item(s).
20. Every Member in remote attendance must ensure there are no other
persons present in their remote location who are able to hear, see or
record the proceedings (unless those such persons are also entitled to
be so present). Members must declare to the meeting, if at any point
during discussion of the item, this requirement is not met.

Agenda Item 3
PUBLIC SPEAKING – PROTOCOL
(For meetings of Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny Committees, Audit &
Governance Committee and Standards Committee)
1.0

Public Speaking

1.1

Residents of West Lancashire may, on giving notice, address any of the
above meetings to make representations on any item on the agenda for those
meetings, except where the public and press are to be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the item.

1.2

A Parish Council Representative may, on giving notice, address any of the
above meetings to make representations on any item on the agenda for those
meetings, except where the public and press are to be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the item.

1.3

The form attached as an Appendix to this Protocol should be used for
submitting requests.

2.0

Deadline for submission

2.1

The prescribed form should be received by Member Services by 10.00 am on
the Friday of the week preceding the meeting. This can be submitted by email to member.services@westlancs.gov.uk or by sending to:
Member Services
West Lancashire Borough Council
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
West Lancashire
L39 2DF

2.2

Completed forms will be collated by Member Services and circulated via email to relevant Members and officers and published on the Council website
via Modgov. Only the name of the speaker (and representative) and details of
the issue to be raised will be published.

2.3

Groups of persons with similar views should elect a spokesperson to speak
on their behalf to avoid undue repetition of similar points. Spokespersons
should identify in writing on whose behalf they are speaking.

3.0

Scope

3.1

Any matters raised must be relevant to an item on the agenda for the meeting.

3.2

The Legal & Democratic Services Manager may reject a submission if it:
(i)
is defamatory, frivolous or offensive;
(ii)
is substantially the same as representations which have already been
submitted at a previous meeting; or

Page 761

(iii)

discloses or requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt
information.

4.0

Number of items

4.1

A maximum of one form per resident will be accepted for each Agenda Item.

4.2

There will be a maximum of 10 speakers per meeting. Where there are more
than 10 forms submitted by residents, the Legal & Democratic Services
Manager will prioritise the list of those allowed to speak. This will be
considered having regard to all relevant matters including:
a. The order in which forms were received.
b. If one resident has asked to speak on a number of items, priority will be
given to other residents who also wish to speak
c. Whether a request has been submitted in relation to the same issue.
No amendments will be made to the list of speakers once it has been
compiled (regardless of withdrawal of a request to speak).

4.3

All submissions received will be published on the Council's website and
circulated to Members of the relevant body and officers for consideration.

5.0

At the Meeting

5.1

Speakers will be shown to their seats.
At the commencement of
consideration of each agenda item the Leader/Chairman will invite the
speakers to make their representations. Speakers will have up to 3 minutes
to address the meeting. The address must reflect the issue included on the
prescribed form submitted in advance.

5.2

Members may discuss what the speaker/s have said, along with any other
information/representations submitted under this protocol, when all speakers
on that item have finished and will then make a decision. Speakers should
not circulate any supporting documentation at the meeting and should not
enter into a debate with Councillors.

5.4

If residents feel nervous or uncomfortable speaking in public, then they can
ask someone else to do it for them, including a Parish or Borough Councillor
representative. They can also bring an interpreter if they need one. They
should be aware there may be others speaking as well.
(Note: If a Resident wishes to have their Borough Councillor speak on their
behalf, the Borough Councillor is not a member of the body considering the
item.)

Page 762

5.5

Speakers may leave the meeting at any time, taking care not to disturb the
meeting.

(Please see attached form.)

Page 763

REQUEST FOR PUBLIC SPEAKING AT MEETINGS

MEETING & DATE …………………………………………………………………
NAME

………………………………………………………………………….

ADDRESS

………………………………………………………………………….
………………………………………………………………………….
Post Code ………………………………………….

PHONE

………………………………………………………

Email

………………………………………………………

Please indicate if you will be in attendance at the
meeting

Please indicate if someone will be speaking on your behalf
at the meeting

YES/NO*
*delete as applicable

YES/NO*
*delete as applicable

If someone is speaking on your behalf please provide their contact details:
NAME

………………………………………………………………………….

PHONE

………………………………………………………

Email

………………………………………………………

Note: This page will not be published.
(P.T.O.)

Page 765

PLEASE PROVIDE DETAILS OF THE MATTER YOU WISH TO RAISE
Agenda Item

Number ………………….
Title ……………………………………………………..

Details

…………………………………………………………….

…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………….
Name …………………………………

Dated ………………………

Completed forms to be submitted by 10.00am on the Friday of the week
preceding the meeting to:Member Services, West Lancashire Borough Council, 52 Derby Street,
Ormskirk, Lancashire, L39 2DF or
Email: member.services@westlancs.gov.uk
If you require any assistance regarding your attendance at a meeting
(including access) or if you have any queries regarding your submission
please contact Member Services on 01695 585065
Note: This page will be circulated to Members of the Committee and published.

Page 766

Agenda Item 4

MEMBERS INTERESTS 2012
A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter considered at a meeting must disclose the interest to
the meeting at which they are present, except where it has been entered on the Register.
A Member with a non pecuniary or pecuniary interest in any business of the Council must disclose the existence and
nature of that interest at commencement of consideration or when the interest becomes apparent.
Where sensitive information relating to an interest is not registered in the register, you must indicate that you have an
interest, but need not disclose the sensitive information.

Notes

Please tick relevant boxes

General
1.

I have a disclosable pecuniary interest.



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 below

2.

I have a non-pecuniary interest.



You may speak and vote

3.

I have a pecuniary interest because
it affects my financial position or the financial position of a
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii)
and the interest is one which a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the
public interest



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 or 6 below

or

it relates to the determining of any approval consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to me or a
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii)
and the interest is one which a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the
public interest
4.

I have a disclosable pecuniary interest (Dispensation
20/09/16) or a pecuniary interest but it relates to the
functions of my Council in respect of:

(i)

Housing where I am a tenant of the Council, and those
functions do not relate particularly to my tenancy or lease.

(ii)

school meals, or school transport and travelling expenses
where I am a parent or guardian of a child in full time
education, or are a parent governor of a school, and it does
not relate particularly to the school which the child attends.



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 or 6 below



You may speak and vote



You may speak and vote

(iii)

Statutory sick pay where I am in receipt or entitled to receipt
of such pay.



You may speak and vote

(iv)

An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members



You may speak and vote

(v)

Any ceremonial honour given to Members



You may speak and vote

(vi)

Setting Council tax or a precept under the LGFA 1992



You may speak and vote

5.

A Standards Committee dispensation applies (relevant lines
in the budget – Dispensation 15/09/20 – 14/09/24)



See the terms of the dispensation

6.

I have a pecuniary interest in the business but I can attend
to make representations, answer questions or give evidence
as the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the
same purpose



You may speak but must leave the
room once you have finished and
cannot vote

‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ (DPI) means an interest of a description specified below which is your
interest, your spouse’s or civil partner’s or the interest of somebody who you are living with as a husband
or wife, or as if you were civil partners and you are aware that that other person has the interest.
Interest
Prescribed description
Employment, office,
Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
trade, profession or
vocation
Sponsorship
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the relevant
authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses
incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election expenses of
M.
Page 767

Contracts

Land
Licences
Corporate tenancies

Securities

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which the
relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.
Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant authority.
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the relevant
authority for a month or longer.
Any tenancy where (to M's knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.
Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to M's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the
relevant authority; and
(b) either—
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of
the shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body
corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest;
“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society;
“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant
person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income; “M” means a member of a relevant authority;
“member” includes a co-opted member; “relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member;
“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives notice to the Monitoring Officer of a DPI;
“relevant person” means M or M’s spouse or civil partner, a person with whom M is living as husband or wife or a person with
whom M is living as if they were civil partners;
“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the
meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited
with a building society.

‘non pecuniary interest’ means interests falling within the following descriptions:
10.1(1)(i) Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and
to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority;
(ii)
Any body (a) exercising functions of a public nature; (b) directed to charitable purposes; or (c)
one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy
(including any political party or trade union), of which you are a member or in a position of
general control or management;
(iii) Any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right
for you (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income.
10.2(2)
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting your wellbeing or financial position or the well-being or financial position of a connected person to a
greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the
ward, as the case may be, affected by the decision.
‘a connected person’ means
(a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association, or
(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a
partner, or any company of which they are directors;
(c)
any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or
(d) any body of a type described in sub-paragraph 10.1(1)(i) or (ii).
‘body exercising functions of a public nature’ means
Regional and local development agencies, other government agencies, other Councils, public health
bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions, arms length management organisations
carrying out housing functions on behalf of your authority, school governing bodies.
A Member with a personal interest who has made an executive decision in relation to that matter must
ensure any written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest.
NB Section 21(13) of the LGA 2000 overrides any Code provisions to oblige an executive member to
attend an overview and scrutiny meeting to answer questions.

Page 768

Agenda Item 5

CABINET

HELD:
Start:
Finish:

Tuesday, 10 November 2020
7.00 pm
7.10 pm

PRESENT:
Councillors:

Portfolio
Councillor Ian Moran
Councillor Yvonne Gagen

Councillor Vickie Cummins
Councillor Gareth Dowling
Councillor David Evans
Councillor Jenny Wilkie
Councillor Kevin Wilkie
Councillor Kevin Wright

Councillor Adam Yates
In attendance:
Councillors

Officers:

36

Leader of the Council and Portfolio
Holder for Economic Regeneration
Deputy Leader of the Council and
Portfolio Holder for Leisure &
Human Resources
Portfolio Holder for Health and
Wellbeing
Portfolio Holder for Communities
and Community Safety
Portfolio Holder for Planning
Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Landlord Services
Portfolio Holder for Street Scene
Portfolio Holder for Emergency
Planning, Preparation and
Implementation
Portfolio Holder for Resources &
Transformation

Adrian Owens, Jane Thompson, David Westley and David
Whittington
Heidi McDougall, Corporate Director of Place & Community
Chris Twomey, Corporate Director of Transformation & Resources
Ian Gill, Head of Growth & Development Services
Michelle Williams, Head of Environmental Services
Fiona Graham, Head of Housing and Regulatory Services
James Pierce, Head of Finance, Procurement and Commercial
Services
Matt Jones, Legal & Democratic Services Manager
Jonathan Mitchell, Housing Strategy & Development Programme
Manager
Christina Iball, Environmental Strategy Officer
Jacky Denning, Democratic Services Manager
Jill Ryan, Member Services/Civic Officer

APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence received.
The Cabinet held a minute silence to pay tribute to those who have lost their lives
serving their country in the armed forces.

Page 769

CABINET

37

HELD:

Tuesday, 10 November 2020

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
The following declarations of interest were received:
1. Councillor Gagen declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda items 8a
Shared Service Review and 8b LCC Public Realm Agreement 2021-2024 as
an employee of Lancashire County Council and did not enter into detailed
discussions which affected LCC.
2. Councillor J Wilkie (Tenant of a Council house) declared a disclosable
pecuniary interest in relation to item 6e Housing Revenue Account Revenue
& Capital Mid Year Review’ for the reasons indicated but was entitled to
speak and vote by virtue of an exemption (nothing in this report relates
particularly to her interest arising from the tenancy).
3. Councillor K Wilkie declared non-pecuniary interest in relation to item 6e
Housing Revenue Account Revenue & Capital Mid Year Review as he has a
connected person who is a tenant of rented Council accommodation. Insofar
as that interest becomes a pecuniary interest (as it could affect the financial
position of their relative and a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard this as so significant that it is likely to
prejudice their judgement of the public interest) it was considered that he was
entitled to speak and vote by virtue of an exemption as nothing in the report
relates particularly to the relevant tenancy or lease.

38

PUBLIC SPEAKING
There were no items under this heading.

39

SPECIAL URGENCY (RULE 16 ACCESS TO INFORMATION PROCEDURE
RULES)/URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items under this heading.

40

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 13 October 2020 be
received as a correct record and signed by the Leader.

41

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS
Consideration was given to the following reports, as contained on pages 469 to 726
of the Book of Reports.

42

CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN 2030
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place &
Page 770

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 10 November 2020

Community, which presented and sought comments on the draft Climate Change
Strategy and Action Plan (CCS&AP) 2030, intended to assist in the delivery of the
Councils aspiration to be carbon neutral by 2030 and progress towards a low carbon
West Lancashire.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A. That the Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan (CCS&AP)
2030, attached at Appendix 2 to the report, be approved and
formally adopted.
B. That it is recognised that this is intended to be a continually
evolving document and delegated authority be given to the
Corporate Director of Place and Community, in consultation with
relevant Portfolio Holders, to update as required.
C. That delegated authority shall be limited to changes that do not
have any direct impact on allocated budgets approved to deliver
any part of the CCS&AP 2030.
D. That the comments of the Executive Overview & Scrutiny
Committee, attached at Appendix 3 to the report be noted.

43

CIL FUNDING PROGRAMME 2021/22
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place &
Community, which provided the results of the consultation on the draft CIL Funding
Programme for 2021/22, and proposed final recommendations for the CIL Funding
Programme in 2021/22.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED: A. That the consultation feedback report, provided at Appendix A, be
noted.
B. That CIL monies be allocated to the delivery of the following
projects in 2021/22:






£40,000 – Cheshire Lines improvements
£30,000 – Long Heyes play area
£50,000 – Clough Valleys improvements
£19,000 – Helmsdale play area
£31,555 – Dial-a-ride transport service

C. That Ormskirk Neighbourhood CIL monies be allocated to the

Page 771

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 10 November 2020

delivery of the following projects in 2021/22:



£58,000 – West End playing field
£10,000 – Halsall lane play area

D. That previously saved CIL monies be allocated to the delivery of
the following project in 2021/22:


£385,000 – Parbold-Appley Bridge towpath improvements

E. That £50,000 be allocated from Reserves towards a fund for
feasibility and design work on potential infrastructure projects in
order to increase the number of deliverable and "shovel-ready"
projects that are ready to bring forward in the borough through
CIL Funding Programmes in future years.
44

INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING STATEMENT 2020
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place &
Community, which introduced the first CIL Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS)
and sought approval to publish the report.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED: A. That the content of the Infrastructure Funding Statement be noted
and published on the Council website.
B. That delegated authority be given to the Corporate Director of
Place and Community to make any amendments to the
Infrastructure Funding Statement, prior to its publication, to reflect
the decision of Cabinet regarding the CIL Funding Programme for
2021/22, and any other non-material amendments required.

45

AFFORDABLE HOUSING CAPITAL BUDGET
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place &
Community, which sought agreement to end the current Regenda Partnership and
sought approval to use the remainder of the linked Affordable Housing Capital
Budget to support Council development of affordable housing.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A.

That the ending of the Regenda Partnership be endorsed and
the remaining Affordable Housing Capital Budget being used
directly by the Council to develop affordable housing through
its Development Company, Tawd Valley Developments.
Page 772

CABINET

46

HELD:

Tuesday, 10 November 2020

HRA REVENUE & CAPITAL MID YEAR REVIEW
Consideration was given to the revised report of the Corporate Director of Place &
Community, which provided a summary of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and
Housing capital programme positions for the 2020/21 financial year.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED: A. That the 2020/21 HRA and Housing capital programme positions
be noted.
B. That the proposed budget adjustments identified in Appendix 2 of
the revised report, be endorsed for consideration by Council.
C. That call in is not appropriate for this item as the report is being
submitted to the next meeting of the Executive Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on 26 November 2020.

47

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED:

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration
of the following items of business on the grounds that they involve
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3
(financial/business affairs) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of that Act and
as, in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption under Schedule 12A outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.

(Note: No representations had been received in relation to the following item being
considered in private)
48

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS
Consideration was given to report relating to the following matters requiring
decisions and contained on pages 727 to 750 of the Book of Reports.

49

SHARED SERVICE REVIEW
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation &
Resources, which provided an update on the proposals outlined in the report
presented 21st November 2019 regarding Payroll, Revenues and Benefits and ICT
provision and sought approval for the recommendations outlined in paragraph 2 of
the report.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
Page 773

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 10 November 2020

report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

50

A.

That the proposal to return Revenues and Benefits to an inhouse service be approved.

B.

That the proposal to enter into a 3 year contract for payroll to
be provided by Lancashire County Council be approved.

C.

That the proposal for a shared IT provision with Lancashire
County Council, on a collaboration arrangement, be approved,
as outlined in section 8 of the report.

D.

That the Corporate Director of Transformation & Resources be
given delegated authority, in consultation with the relevant
Portfolio Holder, to undertake any actions required to progress
the proposals outlined above.

LCC PUBLIC REALM AGREEMENT 2021-2024
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place &
Community, which outlined the outcome of negotiations with LCC in respect of the
future arrangement for the delivery of the public realm works within West Lancashire
Borough.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED: A. That the Corporate Director of Place & Community in consultation
with the Portfolio Holder for Street Scene, be authorised to enter
into a further 3 year Partnership Agreement with Lancashire
County Council for the delivery of Public Realm Works, subject to
the cost of said works being contained within the available
funding allocation.
B. That call in is not appropriate for this item as this matter is one
where urgent action is required in order to allow sufficient time to
notify Lancashire county Council of the decision and put in place
appropriate staffing and contract arrangements in preparation for
Contract commencing in April 2021.

……….………………………..
Leader

Page 774

Agenda Item 7a
CABINET: 12 January 2021
EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY: 28 January 2021

_____________________________________________________________________
Report of:

Head of Finance, Procurement and Commercial
Property

Relevant Portfolio Holder:

Councillor Adam Yates

Contact:

James Pierce (Extn. 5202)
(E-mail: james.pierce@westlancs.gov.uk)
_____________________________________________________________________
SUBJECT: DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2021-22
_____________________________________________________________________
Wards affected - Borough Wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To provide a summary of the General Revenue Account budget position for the
next financial year, 2021/22.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

2.1

That the financial position for 2021-22 and later years be noted, and
consideration given to how a balanced budget can be achieved.

2.2

That the Portfolio Holder for Resources and Transformation is given delegated
authority to submit firm proposals to Council on 24th February 2021 to enable the
budget to be set.

2.3

That call in is not appropriate for this item as it is to be submitted to the next
meeting of the Executive Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28th January
2021.

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS
COMMITTEE

3.1

That the budget position be considered and that any comments agreed by the
Committee be submitted to the Portfolio Holder for Resources and
Transformation in advance of the Council meeting to be held on 24 February
2021.

TO

EXECUTIVE

Page 775

OVERVIEW

AND

SCRUTINY

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The Council must set a budget before the start of each financial year, and this
budget will set out the financial basis for the Council’s corporate and service
plans. The budget that is set must enable the Council’s priorities to be delivered
but must also be affordable. In addition, it should comply with best practice
requirements on budget setting, and must meet statutory and accounting
regulations. The Council meeting on the 24th February will provide all Members
with the opportunity to debate and agree this budget.

4.2

The Council agreed the Sustainable Organisation Review Project report in July
2019 and a range of proposals encompassing both staffing reductions,
efficiencies and income generation were approved. Because of the Covid 19
pandemic, progress against some of these objectives and savings targets has
been severely impacted upon, in particular, those items relating to income
generation which has meant that financial performance has been worse than
budget. The adverse forecasted financial effects on the Council's finances are
significant. Some of key areas affected are shown below:
£ 000's







Leisure operations
Planning income
Car parks
Collection Fund
Debtor legal cost recovery
Commercial property

£400
£300
£444
£960
£280
£150

4.3

Whilst government grants have been received that will offset a considerable
proportion of this loss, it is expected that the projected out-turn for 20/21 will be a
£0.563m overspend and this will clearly impact upon next year's budget setting.

4.4

The latest Medium Term Financial Forecast (MTFF), that was produced several
months ago, was projecting a GRA budget gap of £1.035m by 2023-24. This
budget gap figure reflects the difference between the spending that is required to
maintain services at their agreed level and the resources that are expected to be
available.

4.5

The scale of this projected budget gap was estimated based on the information
that was available at that time and after making assumptions about the level of
government funding that would be provided and other relevant factors. Work is
currently being undertaken to revise the assessment of the budget gap following
the outcome of the Local Government Finance Settlement in late December. The
continuation of the coronavirus pandemic will also make it particularly difficult to
accurately project budget figures for next year.

5.0

LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE SETTLEMENT

5.1

The finance settlement received is generally in line with what was expected. The
key features are:
 The New Homes Bonus is confirmed at £802k compared with £875k in 20/21.
This reduction is less than anticipated by approximately £50k. It has also been

Page 776

confirmed, however, that no new legacy payments will be made in 22/23 and
therefore this may present an issue if not resolved in the Government Fair
Funding Review. This amounts to approx. £600k and forms a significant
portion of the Council's income.
 A new Lower Tier Services Grant has been provided of £141,165. It is not
clear at this stage if this is a recurring grant, and will therefore only be factored
into 21/22 at this stage.
 A freeze in Baseline Funding Levels (BFLs) at 2020-21 levels, to match the
freeze in the business rates multiplier but an increase in section 31 grant for
the under-indexation of the multiplier, to compensate for the freeze in the
business rates multiplier so it has no overall impact.
 Council tax referendum principle of up to 2% or £5, whichever is higher, for
shire district councils (This is already factored into the Medium Term Financial
Strategy calculations).
6.0

BUDGET POSITION FOR 2021-22

6.1

Draft estimates are being prepared for next year that set out a provisional budget
for the Council covering all areas of expenditure and income. These estimates
are based on rolling forward existing budgets to enable agreed service levels to
be maintained. These estimates also include a number of increases to cover
standard budget factors including the impact of the national pay award,
contractual increments, and contract inflation in line with contractual agreements.
The draft estimates will be circulated to Members by email in the coming weeks
when completed.

6.2

The Medium Term Financial Forecast was based on an assumed £5 increase in
the Band D level of the Council tax next year (in line with the actual increase for
2020-21), which is equivalent to a 2.4% rise in the tax level, and this has been
built into the draft estimates.

6.3

Details of any significant variances between the budget estimates and the
medium term financial forecast are to be provided plus a revised
calculation of the level of reserve funding required to close the budget gap.

6.4

The draft estimates will be reviewed to ensure that they are robust for the
purposes of the budget calculation in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 2003, and the results of this review will be reported to the
February Council meeting.

6.5

Through the budget process, Heads of Service have identified a range of new
budget issues or pressures for next year that relate to cost increases or income
reductions. Members will need to carefully consider these proposals and
determine which items to include in the final budget to meet corporate and
service objectives. In line with the approach adopted in the Medium Term
Financial Forecast a provision of £125,000 has been allowed for this factor in
2021-22, but its final value will depend on Member decisions.

6.6

In finalising the budget for next year, consideration must be given to a number of
different factors including:

Page 777



The challenging financial position facing local authorities particularly in the
light of the Covid19 pandemic



The acceptance of budget issues and pressures identified by Heads of
Service;



Changes to fees and charges and the level of the Council Tax;



The Council’s Reserves policy and the use of reserves; and



How any remaining budget gap should be addressed

6.7

The Group leaders and their financial spokespersons are currently examining in
detail various budget options, and the Council meeting in February will provide an
opportunity for each Political Group to put forward proposals that combine both
expenditure and the means of funding it and to set the Council Tax.

7.0

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL POSITION

7.1

In recent years, the use of reserves has supported the Council's overall budget
position. However, in 2020 the Covid19 pandemic and the weak economic
climate have significantly affected financial performance and the achievement of
the SORP measures. Predominantly these SORP issues relate to income
generation being lower than anticipated, for example, poor interest rate returns
on investments. Consequently it is envisaged that in 2021/22, that a further use
of reserves will be required to balance up the budget for that year. Based upon
this, there will be a need to find additional savings in order to balance up the
budget, over the medium term.

7.2.

After the budget has been set, a revised Medium Term Financial Forecast will be
produced for Council in July 2021 taking into account all of the latest information.
This will identify any further savings and income measures that will be required
going forward and their value.

8.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

8.1

There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this report and, in
particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder.

9.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

9.1

The formal consideration and reporting of the budget estimates is part of the
budgetary management and control framework that is designed to minimise the
financial risks facing the Council. This process is resource intensive for both
Members and Officers but ensures that a robust and achievable budget is set.

9.2

There are a number of financial factors that will influence next year’s budget that
are unavailable at the time of producing this report including the deficit or surplus
on this year’s Council Tax collection, and business rate income projections.
Estimates for these areas will be produced in January in line with statutory
requirements, and will be included in the final budget setting report to Council in
February.

Page 778

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.
Equality Impact Assessment
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees,
elected members and / or stakeholders. Therefore, no Equality Impact Assessment is
required. A formal Equality Impact Assessment will be produced when the Council
agrees the budget at its meeting in February.
Appendices
Minute of Cabinet (Executive Overview and Scrutiny Committee only)

Page 779

Agenda Item 7b
CABINET: 12 January 2021
EXECUTIVE
SCRUTINY
January 2021

Report of:

OVERVIEW
COMMITTEE:

&
28

Head of Finance, Procurement and Commercial Services

Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor A Yates
Contact for further information: Mr M Kostrzewski (Extn.5374)
(E-mail: Mike.Kost@westlancs.gov.uk)

SUBJECT: DRAFT MEDIUM TERM CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Wards affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To set out details on the GRA medium term capital programme position for the
next 3 years

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

2.1

That the medium term financial position be noted, and consideration given to how
a balanced capital programme can be achieved.

2.2

That the Portfolio Holder for Resources and Transformation be given delegated
authority to submit firm proposals to Council on 24 February 2021 to enable the
capital programme to be set.

2.3

That call in is not appropriate for this item as it is to be submitted to the Executive
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28 January 2021.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION
COMMITTEE

3.1

That consideration be given to how a balanced capital programme can be set and
that any comments agreed by the Committee be submitted to the Portfolio Holder
for Resources and Transformation in advance of the Council meeting to be held
on 24 February 2021.

TO

EXECUTIVE

Page 781

OVERVIEW

AND

SCRUTINY

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The Council has a medium term rolling capital programme, which is reviewed and
updated on a regular basis. As part of the budget setting process, a programme
covering the next three years will need to be agreed by Council at its meeting in
February 2021. This report concentrates on the general capital programme and
does not consider the HRA capital programme which is determined through a
separate process.

5.0

CAPITAL RECEIPT FUNDING

5.1

The main source of Council funding available to support the general capital
programme are receipts from the sale of assets, and at the start of this financial
year there were £2.602m of receipts being held for this purpose. The number and
value of assets sold each year can vary significantly depending on a range of
factors. In particular Council House sales under Right to Buy (RTB) legislation
can be volatile depending on the state of the economy and changes in
government rules.

5.2

Table 1 shows details of sales by number and value in recent years. Part of the
proceeds from the sale of Council Houses must be repaid to the Government,
and the usable sale proceeds shown below reflect the amount available for new
capital spending after taking these payments into account.

Year

2011-12
2012-13
2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18
2018-19
2019-20

Number of Sales

Council
Houses
10
25
48
35
57
81
73
57
56

Other Assets
0
3
4
4
5
6
1
3
2

Usable Sale Proceeds £ 000's

Council
Houses
123
240
307
300
338
329
332
339
339

Other Assets
0
102
29
273
142
174
9
103
8

Please note the other asset sales excludes Westec housing sales as this
provides appropriate comparable data.

5.3

Based on recent trends and projecting forward on a prudent basis it is anticipated
that there will be receipts of £1.040m generated from an estimated 200 RTB
Council House sales over the next 4 years, as well as approximately £0.2m of
receipts from land sales.

Page 782

5.4

In addition to the funding shown above the Council is also able to retain a further
share of the proceeds from RTB sales under government regulations in relation
to an “Allowable Debt” factor. It is estimated that this should enable new spending
of £2.8m over the next 4 years.

5.5

Taking all of these factors into account, it is anticipated that there will be capital
receipts generated of £4.040m generated over the 4 year period 2020-21 to
2023-24 that will be available to fund new capital expenditure. These projections
are potentially subject to significant variation as, for example, a single large asset
sale could produce a large receipt and the level of future house sales is difficult to
predict. However, in looking at medium term financial plans it is best practice to
use a prudent approach when estimating future available resources. The
assumptions underlying these projections will be reviewed on a regular basis to
ensure they take account of new developments.

6.0

SPENDING REQUIREMENTS

6.1

The Council’s current 3 year programme covers the period 2020/2021 to
2022/2023. Consequently, in addition to current year budgets there are also
indicative spending approvals in place for the following two years. It should be
recognised, however, that as we operate a medium term capital programme,
approvals that have been given for future years are indicative allocations only
that are potentially subject to change.

6.2

The current value of spending approvals to be funded from capital receipts is
£5.137m, which is detailed in the revised capital programme report to the
December 2020 Council meeting. In addition to the existing scheme approvals it
is our normal practice in developing the rolling medium term programme to
include provisional allocations for the next year of the programme (in this case
2023/2024). Consequently, allocations of £0.424m for ongoing capital schemes
such as corporate property maintenance and ICT development, which typically
receive funding each year are included.

7.0

OVERVIEW

7.1

Table 2 summarises the current position in terms of estimated capital receipt
funding and spending requirements. The bottom line position is that there is
£1.081m available over the programme period. This funding position is before
consideration is given to potential new capital schemes that may be identified by
Heads of Service, or which may be put forward by Members.

Table 2 – General Capital Receipt Funding Available

£ 000

Usable capital receipts at the commencement of 2020-21

2,602

Estimate of receipts to be generated between April 2020
and the end of the financial year 2023/2024

4.040

Page 783

Existing spending approvals covering the period 2020-21
and 2022-23.

- 5.137

Provisional allocations 2023-24

- 0.424

Total funding available for new schemes

1.081

8.0

WAY FORWARD

8.1

There are a number of options that can be considered to realign and update the
programme. Members will need to carefully consider what proposals to include in
the final budget to meet corporate and service objectives but also to ensure a
balanced overall financial position.

8.2

There are a number of factors that can be considered or given regard through this
process including:


The Council has been very successful in attracting external capital investment
over many years, and further opportunities should be considered



The priority that is attached to the potential new capital schemes that may be
identified through the budget process



The need for investment in IT to provide more effective and efficient services



Reviewing existing spending approvals to assess whether they are still relevant
and appropriate



Prudential borrowing could be assessed as a means of providing additional
capital
resources. This type of borrowing can be used to finance investment in long term
fixed assets where it is prudent, affordable and sustainable. The costs
associated
with this borrowing would then need to be factored into the revenue budget



The scope to develop new capital schemes funded through Section 106
Agreements or Community Infrastructure Levies which are subject to separate
Processes



The potential financing requirements of the new Development Company, the
Skelmersdale Town Centre Redevelopment, and the Leisure Strategy, which
have all been the subject of separate Committee reports



The capital investment that will need to be made to ensure the successful
implementation of the Sustainable Organisation Review

.

8.3

Officers will work with each Political Group during the budget process to review
the available options. The Council meeting will then provide an opportunity for
each Political Group to put forward proposals to produce a balanced capital

Page 784

programme.
9.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1

The proper management of the Council’s asset base enhances service delivery.
Assets consume a high level of resources both in terms of capital investment and
revenue maintenance and having a proper strategy in this area ensures that the
capital base can shape the future direction of the Council.

10.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

10.1

The level of capital receipts generated by asset sales is a significant risk to the
future development of the programme. If receipts exceed the projections
contained in this report, it would enable additional schemes to be developed.
However, if receipts are below the projections, it would require reductions to be
made.

10.2

Some schemes in the Programme are dependent on external partner funding. To
minimise the risk of funding not being available, such schemes will only begin
once their funding details have been finalised.

11.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

11.1

There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report.

Background Documents
The following background documents (as defined in Section 100D (5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing this Report.


Revised Capital programme 2020-21

Equality Impact Assessment
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees,
elected members and / or stakeholders. Therefore no Equality Impact Assessment is
required.
Appendices
None

Page 785

Agenda Item 7c

CABINET: 12 January 2021
EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE: 28 January 2021

Report of: Head of Finance, Procurement and Commercial Services
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Cllr J. Wilkie
Contact for further information: Peter Quick (Extn. 5203)
(peter.quick@westlancs.gov.uk)
SUBJECT: HOUSING ACCOUNT – REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET SETTING

Wards Affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To provide a summary of the Housing Account’s financial position.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

2.1

That the financial position be noted and consideration given to the budget
matters set out in this report.

2.2

That the use of the Director of Place & Community's delegated authority, in
consultation with the Landlord Services Portfolio Holder, in relation to rent and
service charge changes be noted and endorsed.

2.3

That this report be used for consultation purposes prior to the Council
considering this matter in February 2021.

2.4

That the Housing and Landlord Services Portfolio Holder be given delegated
authority to submit firm proposals to Council on 24 February 2021 to enable
the budget to be set.

2.5

That call in is not appropriate for this item as it is to be submitted to the next
meeting of the Executive Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28 January
2021.

Page 787

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

3.1

That the budget position be considered and that any comments agreed by the
Committee be submitted to the Housing and Landlord Services Portfolio
Holder in advance of the Council meeting to be held on 24 February 2021.

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The Council must set a budget for its Housing Revenue Account (HRA) before
the start of each financial year, setting out the financial basis for the delivery
of services. The budget set must enable both Council and tenant priorities to
be delivered but must also be affordable. In addition, it should comply with
best practice requirements on budget setting and meet statutory and
accounting regulations.

4.2

Local Authorities with housing stock are now regulated by the Regulator of
Social Housing from 1 April 2020. Members were invited to comment on the
consultation on a new rent standard between May 2019 and July 2019. It is
anticipated that the new regulatory regime will be more robust than previously
around compliance with rent standard rules and consumer standards. WLBC
also took part in the pilot scheme during 2019/20 to make the transition to the
new standard and regulator as smooth as possible.

4.3

The Covid pandemic has had a substantial operational impact for WLBC
during 2020/21, particularly in relation to the delivery of services and collection
of rents. This coincided with the new SORP organisation structures and
working methods from 1 April 2020.

4.4

Policy options agreed in 2016 created the required reserves and funding to
see the HRA through the four years of Government policy to reduce tenant
rents by 1% per annum. These reserves, the budget savings and efficiency
reserve, have now been used. There is therefore no general reserve
remaining for funding additional budget issues.

5.0

RENTAL INCOME

5.1

In line with our standard practice, the Director of Place & Community will use
her delegated authority to increase the majority of tenant rents by 1.5%,
(being September CPI of 0.5% plus 1%), from April 2021.

5.3

To ensure compliance with the specific rules of the new rent regulator, a
number of specific rules will also be applied to WLBC rents:


To ensure strict adherence to the maximum rent increase that is allowed of
CPI + 1%, all rents with this increase will be rounded down to the nearest
penny. The effect in any individual year is negligible and penny differences
over time will be corrected each time a property is re-let.

Page 788



5.4

Around 2% of properties will have an increase in rent of between 0% and
0.5%, (being September 2020 CPI), rounded down if applicable.

There are a number of other factors that influence the rent budget:


The number of properties within the Housing Stock which will be
influenced by Right to Buy Council house sales (which is outside the
Council’s control), the number of homes built or purchased, and the
number of homes demolished as part of revival and development projects.



The full roll out of Universal Credit continues to be an area requiring close
monitoring but the effect so far has been a relatively modest increase in
arrears that, in turn, has meant a modest increase in the contribution to the
bad debt provision.
This and the effects of lockdown can be
accommodated within the existing budget for contribution to bad debts of
£160k p.a.



As indicated in the 2020/21 HRA mid-year forecast, the current weekly rent
roll for tenant rents means that the rental budget can be increased by
£100k in addition to the uplift of 1.5% This is a technical adjustment and
will not have any effect on tenants.

6.0

OTHER CHARGES

6.1

The general principle applied to service charges is that they should be
calculated to ensure that they are sufficient to recover the full cost of service
provision. In addition, the Government has advised, but not directed, that it
would expect service charge increases to be limited to CPI + 1% unless there
is a very clear rationale.

6.2

In keeping with this principle, it is proposed to increase the general level of
service charges next year by 1.5% (based on the September CPI rate of 0.5%
plus 1.0% in line with our standard practices). In general, the service charges
apply to communal properties such as sheltered stock and flats as well as
residents who receive the Council's furnishing service.

6.3

There will be a number of exceptions to this general approach including:


The heating charge for each property in 2021/22 will be calculated based
on estimated cost. This means that different charges will apply to different
residents. Wholesale gas prices have reduced in recent months. In
addition the heating account overall remains in surplus, so all residents will
have their heating charge reduced by 10%, except for around 275
residents who will receive a lower reduction or will have their heating
charge unchanged.



As in 2020/21, garage rents will be increased by CPI, (0.5%)
Page 789



The sheltered tenant charge that relates to the Intensive Housing
Management offer will be unchanged in 2021/22 because total income
raised from this service is covering costs. The previous offer to category 1
sheltered tenants, that they could receive a category 2 level of service if
they pay the additional charge, has been successful. The budget has
been increased to recognise the additional income generated of over
£100k. This is a great example of providing more customer choice, and
this actually leading to greater value for money for our residents.



All sheltered tenants will still see an increase of 1.5% (CPI plus 1%) for
their property maintenance charge.

7.0

DRAFT ESTIMATES AND CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME

7.1

The base assumptions used in the HRA Business Plan and for the HRA
Estimates are detailed in Appendix A. The HRA Business Plan sets out
projections of expenditure and income over a 30-year period to enable
forward planning and long-term investment decisions to be made. The HRA
Estimates for 2021/22 then provide more detailed information that sets out the
financial basis for how HRA service objectives will be achieved in the next
year.

7.2

The draft estimates for 2021/22 are shown in Appendix B and provide a
provisional HRA budget covering all areas of revenue expenditure and
income. These estimates take account of the budget assumptions in Appendix
A, significant contractual uplifts, as well as changes in rents and service
charges as highlighted above. They also address the following factors:


Recharges have generally been increased by 1%; this may vary as budget
setting continues. The recharge budget for Grounds Maintenance has
increased by £145k, reflecting costs charged to the HRA in 2020/21, uplifted
by 1%.



Savings of £50k in HRA base running costs have been removed from the
budget, being £25k not required in delivering planned revenue works; around
£18k in staff car allowance budgets no longer required; and around £7k in
other running costs.



Contractual uplifts have been budgeted for when required, for example the
revenue boiler servicing contract has been increased by 3%



After finalising the 2019/20 year end accounts, around £5.2k remained in the
budget savings and efficiency reserve at 31 March 2020. This will be
released in 2021/22.



Various other virements and adjustments as required.

Page 790

7.3

In addition to the roll over budget in continuing services, it is also important to
consider new budget issues and areas for development. Budget issues
identified by officers should be considered as part of the budget process.
Members will need to carefully consider those options, and any others that
may emerge through the budget process and determine which proposals to
include in the final budget to meet service objectives.

7.4

Further revenue budget issues can be funded by flexing the revenue
contribution to capital. This means that additional budget issues and
initiatives will in effect need to be funded from borrowing because the amount
of HRA contribution available to fund the capital programme will need to be
reduced to ensure a balanced HRA budget. Alternatively, additional savings
or income opportunities would need to be identified.

7.5

The Capital Investment Programme for the next 3 years is shown in Appendix
D along with initial profiling. These are the remaining 3 years from the fiveyear programme approved by Council in February 2019. The next five-year
tranche is also included for information purposes only at this stage. Reprofiling from the 2020/21 mid-year budget agreed at the December 2020
Council meeting has been included.

7.6

In order to manage resourcing and delivery of the required works, the current
Housing Investment Plan was initially profiled equally throughout the five
years to remove peaks and troughs in the expected renewal dates for different
components. The 2021/22 and 2022/23 budgets reflect the capital programme
re-profiled during 2020/21, primarily due to the Covid situation. It is likely that
the remaining three years may require some further re-profiling forwards and
backwards due to reflect:


The evolving situation in regard to the Covid pandemic;



The outcome of asset reviews to assess the financial viability of individual
stock;



Delivery contracts due to be tendered for a 2022/23 start;



Local knowledge from Council staff and findings once particular works
actually commence; and



Contractual uplift obligations and changes in stock levels.

Page 791

8.0

TOWARDS A BALANCED BUDGET POSITION AND LONG TERM
PROSPECTS

8.1

The draft estimates contained in the appendices identify that there is a small
surplus of £20k before taking into account the new budget issues included in
Appendix C.

8.2

Further revenue budget issues identified will require either further savings to
be identified, or a reduction in the revenue contribution to fund the capital
programme described in paragraph 7.4.

8.3

Officers will work with Members across all political groups and will consult with
tenants to consider this position and how the budget should be balanced and
the budget issues that should be approved. In looking at finalising the budget
for next year consideration will also need to be given to a number of different
factors including:


Tenants comments and feedback on the budget position;



The acceptance of the new budget issues set out in Appendix C;



The profiling of capital expenditure and borrowing across future financial
years; and



Remaining HRA reserves and balances.

9.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1

The Council with its Tenants wants to ensure that the future business plan
allows properties to be brought up to a reasonable standard and that
appropriate investment can be made at the appropriate time. Business plan
modelling enables a well-informed investment plan to be developed in keeping
with the requirements of an effective asset management strategy.

10.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

10.1 The formal consideration and reporting of the budget estimates is part of the
overall budgetary management and control framework that is designed to
minimise the financial risks facing the Council. This process is resource
intensive for both Members and Officers but ensures that a robust and
achievable budget is set. The draft HRA estimates contained in Appendix B
will be reviewed early in the New Year and updated to take into account any
new developments and more recent information.
11.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

Page 792

11.1

There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.

Equality Impact Assessment
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees,
elected members and / or stakeholders. Therefore no Equality Impact Assessment is
required. A formal Equality Impact Assessment will be produced if necessary when
the Council agrees the budget at its meeting in February.

Appendices
Appendix A – HRA Business Plan Key Assumptions
Appendix B – Draft HRA Estimates
Appendix C – Budget Issues
Appendix D – Draft Capital Investment Plan
Appendix E – Minute of Cabinet - 12 January 2021 (Executive Overview & Scrutiny
Committee only)

Page 793

APPENDIX A
KEY BUSINESS PLAN ASSUMPTIONS FOR THE NEXT FIVE YEARS – 2021/22
TO 2025/26
General Factors
CPI Inflation
RPI Inflation
Stock Numbers

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

0.50%
1.10%
-0.12%

0.50%
1.50%
-0.07%

2%
3%
-0.05%

2%
3%
-0.10%

2%
3%
-0.86%

1.50%
1.50%
0.50%
0%
0.50%

1.50%
1.50%
0.50%
2%
0.50%

3%
3%
2%
2%
2%

3%
3%
2%
2%
2%

3%
3%
2%
2%
2%

2.75%

2%

2%

2%

2%

0%

1.50%

3%

3%

3%

0%

2%

2%

2%

2%

Income
Dwelling rents
Service charges
Garage rents
Heating charges
Other income

Expenditure
Employee related
Repairs, maintenance &
energy
Other expenditure

Notes
(1) Void rates are not expected to change over the period of the business plan and
as their impact is built into the starting budgets they do not need to be included
above.
(2) The average interest rate on existing borrowing of 3.47% will not change over the
business plan period and so is not shown above.
(3) Investment programme is based on survey information analysed in 2018/19
following a full stock condition survey.
(4) For the 2021/22 budget the above assumptions have been applied - most notably
0% uplift on repairs and other expenditure budgets. This brings the approach more
in line with that for the GRA. However; where there is a contractual obligation for an
inflationary uplift and it cannot be accommodated within the existing budget, then this
will be built into the base budget.
(5) Temporary factors that are included in the 2020/21 budget for one year only are
set at nil from 2021/22 onwards.

Page 794

APPENDIX B

DRAFT HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET ESTIMATES

Budget 2021/22
General Expenses
Premises Related Expenses
Bad Debts Provision
Capital Programme Contribution
Debt Principal Repayment
Debt Charges
Sub-Total

Running
Employees Expenses
£
£

External
income
£

167,890
160,000
0
0
0
327,890

0
0
0
0
0
0

Supervision, Management, Repairs & Maintenance
Central Administration
127,900
858,270

-411,600

574,570

3,152,290

3,726,860

101,770

0

745,400

148,770

894,170

Tenancy Services
Allocations
Estate Management
Other Tenancy Services
Elderley & Disabled Support
Sub-Total

231,020
69,250
293,290
303,600
32,090
228,560
554,900
411,510
1,111,300 1,012,920

-90
-30
-277,770
-1,279,690
-1,557,580

300,180
596,860
-17,120
-313,280
566,640

9,810
114,750
0
323,280
447,840

309,990
711,610
-17,120
10,000
1,014,480

Property Services
Property Services Management
Caretakers
Maintenance of Grassed Areas
Responsive & Void Repairs
Planned Maintenance
Sub-Total

548,380 1,096,800
304,240
140,520
0
866,840
348,260 3,563,140
438,360
432,570
1,639,240 6,099,870

-210
-49,180
-30,200
-57,360
-3,640
-140,590

1,644,970
395,580
836,640
3,854,040
867,290
7,598,520

-137,330
13,130
0
-13,840
-310,670
-448,710

1,507,640
408,710
836,640
3,840,200
556,620
7,149,810

Income & Financial Inclusion

0
0
0
0
0
0

Support
Services &
Capital
Total Cash Charges Net budget
£
£
£

643,630

167,890
0
167,890
160,000
0
160,000
0 7,550,000
7,550,000
0
349,860
349,860
0 3,056,990
3,056,990
327,890 10,956,850 11,284,740

General Income
Customer & Client Receipts
Interest
Sub-Total

0
0
0

0 -24,083,860 -24,083,860
0
0
0
0 -24,083,860 -24,083,860

0 -24,083,860
-1,000
-1,000
-1,000 -24,084,860

Transfers to/from Reserves

0

0

-5,200

-5,200

3,522,070 8,400,720 -26,193,630 -14,270,840 14,250,840

-20,000

Grand Total

Page 795

0

0

Notes:
1.

The estimates above reflect the latest position in budget setting.

2.

Support service recharges between HRA services and with the GRA are
currently assumed to be a 1% increase though final figures may vary up or
down. The Grounds maintenance recharge has been increased by £145k
to reflect estimated cost of Grounds Maintenance services to the HRA.

3.

Staff budgets reflect the organisational establishment structure.

4.

Salary costs have been increased at cost centre level by 2.75% in line with
the WLBC GRA Medium Term Financial Strategy. Given latest
Government statements on pay, the increase is being offset by a central
HRA credit. If the 0% pay uplift is confirmed the central element can be
moved to individual budgets if necessary.

5.

Savings of £50k in HRA base running costs have been removed from the
budget, being £25k not required in delivering planned revenue works;
around £18k in staff car allowance budgets no longer required; and around
£7k in other running costs.

6.

Other amendments to the existing budget, for example significant
contractual increases, will be updated as the process continues. The
revenue boiler servicing budget has been increased by 3%.

7.

The furniture service offered to HRA tenants is growing, so running costs
associated with WLBC purchasing furniture, white goods, carpets and
removal costs have been increased by £64k, matched by a £64k increase
in budgeted income, to reflect current demand.

8.

The HRA budget includes release of around £5,200 remaining in the
budget and efficiency savings reserve after 2019/20 year end.

9.

Other virements and technical adjustments have been done when
necessary. For example, the rental income budget has been increased by
£100k in addition to budgeted uplift; to reflect the current run rate. This
was identified as being available in the 2020/21 HRA mid-year forecast.

Page 796

Budget 2020/21
General Expenses
Premises Related Expenses
Bad Debts Provision
Capital Programme Contribution
Debt Principal Repayment
Debt Charges
Sub-Total

Running
Employees Expenses
£
£

0
0
0
0
0
0

Support
Services &
Capital
Total Cash Charges Net budget
£
£
£

External
income
£

162,940
160,000
0
0
0
322,940

0
0
0
0
0
0

162,940
0
162,940
160,000
0
160,000
0 8,800,000
8,800,000
0
338,033
338,033
0 3,056,990
3,056,990
322,940 12,195,023 12,517,963

Supervision, Management, Repairs & Maintenance
Central Administration
224,160
954,290

-436,900

741,550

2,877,309

3,618,859

Income & Financial Inclusion

585,480

88,770

-10,000

664,250

147,300

811,550

Tenancy Services
Allocations
Estate Management
Other Tenancy Services
Elderley & Disabled Support
Sub-Total

223,490
279,420
32,470
547,390
1,082,770

73,250
291,370
164,560
406,060
935,240

-90
-30
-213,770
-1,303,550
-1,517,440

296,650
570,760
-16,740
-350,100
500,570

9,710
113,610
0
320,070
443,390

306,360
684,370
-16,740
-30,030
943,960

Property Services
Property Services Management
Caretakers
Maintenance of Grassed Areas
Responsive & Void Repairs
Planned Maintenance
Sub-Total

502,320 1,086,570
299,420
140,190
0
716,590
337,390 3,563,140
425,670
462,570
1,564,800 5,969,060

-210
-39,000
-29,800
-57,160
-3,640
-129,810

1,588,680
400,610
686,790
3,843,370
884,600
7,404,050

-134,390
13,000
0
-13,460
-302,320
-437,170

1,454,290
413,610
686,790
3,829,910
582,280
6,966,880

General Income
Customer & Client Receipts
Interest
Sub-Total

0
0
0

0 -23,624,930 -23,624,930
0
0
0
0 -23,624,930 -23,624,930

Transfers to/from Reserves

0

0

Grand Total

-1,511,190

-1,511,190

3,457,210 8,270,300 -25,719,080 -13,991,570 13,660,682

-330,888

Page 797

0

0

0 -23,624,930
-53,980
-53,980
-53,980 -23,678,910

APPENDIX C – BUDGET ISSUES

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
£000
£000
£000

Budget Issues
Capital Expenditure

Sub Total
Revenue Expenditure
1
2

Extend the Allpay DD Bureau Service
Capital & Repairs satisfaction through
Voicescape

0
20

19

tbc

Sub Total

20

19

tbc

Total

20

19

tbc

Page 798

Appendix D – DRAFT CAPITAL PROGRAMME UNTIL 2023/24

Scheme

21/22
£000's

22/23
£000's

23/24
£000's

Roofing
External Works
Kitchens
Heating
Windows & Doors
Electrics
Bathrooms
Walls
Fire Safety Works
Communal Services

2,794
1,314
949
823
822
744
744
410
271
186

2,794
1,314
949
823
822
744
744
410
271
186

2,169
1,005
632
821
549
637
500
278
269
119

5 Years
2024-29
£000's
1,073
3,031
3,332
4,344
1,392
506
1,719
2,452
0
576

Housing Capital Investment
Plan

9,057

9,057

6,979

18,425

Carbon Neutral Dwellings
Salary costs & Professional Fees
Disabled Adaptations
Contingency
Change in Standard for Smoke
Detection

475
600
533
300

475
600
533
300

600
439
300

300

300

300

Environmental Programme

364

364

200

Sheltered Housing Upgrades
Lifts
Solar PV Battery Storage
Other Housing Schemes

140
35
25
2,772

140
35
25
2,772

140

1,979

Total Expenditure

11,829

11,829

8,958

Notes
(1) The three years, (2021/22 to 2023/24), above are those remaining from the
updated, (five year), housing capital programme approved by Council in
February 2020.
(2) The budget highlighted in grey relates to the five years in the stock condition
survey from 2024 to 2029, for information only at this stage.

Page 799

(3) Year 3 to 10 budgets are expressed in 2021/22 terms, contractual uplift and
changes in stock levels will be considered each year as part of budget setting.
(4) It is anticipated that years 4 and 5 will require profiling forwards and
backwards to optimize use of available funds and resources, based on asset
reviews as they are carried out, as well as local knowledge.
(5) 2020/21 budget of £4.933m re-profiled at mid-year has been equally profiled
into 2021/22 and 2022/23.

Page 800

Agenda Item 7d
CABINET: 12 JANUARY 2021

Report of:

Corporate Director of Place and Community

Relevant Portfolio Holder:

Councillor David Evans

Contact for further information: Stephen Benge
(Email: stephen.benge@westlancs.gov.uk)
SUBJECT: LIVERPOOL CITY REGION SPATIAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY –
SECOND ROUND OF CONSULTATION
Wards affected: None (directly) – neighbouring authority consultation

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To seek approval of the proposed West Lancashire Borough Council response to
the consultation on the Liverpool City Region Spatial Development Strategy draft
vision and objectives, and suggested policy approaches.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That the comments at Appendix A be approved for submission to the Liverpool
City Region Combined Authority as West Lancashire Borough Council's
consultation response on the emerging Spatial Development Strategy.

3.0

BACKGROUND

3.1

The Liverpool City Region Combined Authority (LCRCA) is preparing its first
Spatial Development Strategy (SDS). The SDS is a statutory planning document,
meaning that when it is published, it will form part of the ‘development plan’ for
the six Liverpool City Region (LCR) local authorities alongside their own local
plans and neighbourhood plans, and will be used in decision-making on planning
applications within the LCR area.

Page 801

3.2

The SDS will not form part of the development plan in West Lancashire, so its
policies will not be used in the determination of planning applications in this
Borough. Nevertheless, the SDS's strategy and policies may still affect West
Lancashire, given this Borough lies directly adjacent to three of the LCR
authorities, and sits within the same housing market area as Sefton, Knowsley,
Liverpool and Wirral Councils, and within the same functional economic market
area as all six of the LCR authorities.

3.3

Whether or not the SDS aims to fully meet the housing and employment land
needs of the LCR may affect the housing and employment land needs of West
Lancashire Borough (i.e. there may or may not be scope for one neighbouring
authority to contribute towards meeting another neighbouring authority's unmet
needs). Given these linkages, the LCRCA continues to engage with West
Lancashire Borough Council under the 'Duty to Cooperate' and the current
consultation on the SDS is part of this cooperation. However, the current
Statement of Common Ground between the LCRCA, the six LCR authorities and
West Lancashire Borough Council does confirm (under the Duty to Co-operate)
that each authority will meet their own housing needs and that authorities will
work collaboratively to meet employment land needs.
The First Round of Consultation

3.4

The first round of consultation on the emerging SDS took place for 13 weeks
from October 2019 to January 2020. Consultees were asked what the main
planning-related challenges were in the LCR, and what should be done to meet
them. The consultation was noteworthy in terms of its innovative ways of getting
different groups of people involved from different sections of the community. The
web-based consultation platform was easy to use, and significant effort was
made to engage with 'hard to reach groups' such as youth, and people from more
deprived and minority communities. This is reflected in the good number of
responses from such groups, and the nature of issues raised as being important
(for example, the greatest number of representations were made on the topic of
the environment and climate change).

3.5

WLBC offered its broad informal support to the SDS at the first round of
consultation, and has since continued its regular liaison with the LCRCA at both
officer and Member level.
The Second Round of Consultation

3.6

Building on the feedback received from its autumn 2019 engagement, the
LCRCA is now seeking further views from stakeholders, this time on a proposed
vision and set of objectives for the SDS. Round 2 of the SDS consultation is also
seeking people's views on the approaches to a number of key policy areas.
These policy areas reflect feedback received from Round 1, the emerging
evidence base, and other strategies, policies and proposals of the LCRCA.

3.7

At this stage, the SDS is not proposing strategic policies in relation to housing or
employment needs in the City Region. These matters are expected to be
consulted upon in summer / autumn 2021, by which time the government's
intentions with regard to the proposed reforms of the planning system may be
clearer.

Page 802

3.8

Notwithstanding the government's publication of the Planning White Paper in
August 2020 which proposes significant reforms to the existing planning system
in England, the White Paper's lack of detail on the role of Spatial Development
Strategies, and the currently unknown timescale for the introduction of the
proposed reforms, the LCRCA is nonetheless progressing the SDS, albeit with a
degree of adaptability in mind.

3.9

The second round of consultation on the LCS SDS runs from 10 November 2020
to 1 February 2021 and is using a similar web-based platform to the first round of
consultation, although understandably, Covid-19 restrictions are limiting other
forms of public engagement.
Content of the SDS

3.10

The SDS will only deal with planning matters of strategic importance to the LCR.
Its policies will be ‘high level’, leaving the more detailed planning policies to local
plans to be prepared by the six LCR authorities, reflecting their individual local
circumstances. In line with government Regulations, the SDS will not amend any
existing Green Belt boundaries in the City Region.

3.11

The SDS will have regard to national planning policy (as set out in the National
Planning Policy Framework), health, sustainable development, and climate
change. It will be consistent with, and seek to bring together, a number of LCR
strategies, for example the draft LCR Local Industrial Strategy and the LCR
Transport Plan. As is the case with a local plan, the SDS will be backed up by a
comprehensive evidence base, and will be subject to various assessments such
as a Sustainability Appraisal and Health Impact Assessment. In addition, the
LCR SDS will be subject to a ‘Social Value Evaluation’ to ensure emerging
policies take account of wider community benefits and social aspects.

3.12

The SDS in its current form contains a proposed vision, 5 objectives, and 13
policy areas. The consultation can be accessed by following this link:
https://lcrsds.commonplace.is/

4.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR WEST LANCASHIRE

4.1

In terms of the content of the emerging SDS, there is little at present that would
have a significant direct impact on West Lancashire, although this Borough's
residents and businesses are likely to benefit from being adjacent to a City
Region that is thriving, healthy and successful, that is delivering sustainable
development, and that is dealing with climate change and its implications.

4.2

In plan-making, the matters that usually tend to have the most significant crossboundary implications are housing and employment land provision, and transport.
Not meeting one's objectively-assessed needs for housing or employment land
could lead to increased demand for land in a neighbouring authority area, and
could influence commuting patterns and traffic levels. Provision of adequate
transport infrastructure associated with proposed new development is vital in
order to minimise or avoid negative effects on surrounding areas. As mentioned
in paragraph 3.7 above, the emerging SDS is not yet considering housing and
employment figures and their distribution across the LCR and so the potential for

Page 803

cross-boundary impacts is not yet known, but the current LCR Statement of
Common Ground is not seeking that West Lancashire would meet any of the
LCR's development needs. The proposed response at Appendix A confirms this
Council's position that it is not able to meet LCR development needs at this time.
4.3

Also, the proposed SDS policy areas do not yet refer to any specific
developments or schemes, and thus the proposed response at Appendix A
suggests that the next iteration of the SDS includes the proposals for the
Skelmersdale Rail Link.

4.4

There are a number of other matters within the proposed policy areas that may
have cross-boundary implications or that could offer opportunities for cooperation between the LCR and neighbouring authorities. These include
management of water and flood risk, development of Green Infrastructure
networks, enhancing broadband connectivity, and working to improve food
security and decrease food miles.

5.0

NEXT STEPS

5.1

Borough Council Members were given the opportunity to make comments on the
emerging SDS, to be combined with officers' views to form a single West
Lancashire Borough Council response to the LCRCA engagement. Feedback
was received from one Member on behalf of their Party. In the light of these
comments received, it is proposed that the representations attached in Appendix
A be made on the LCR SDS.

5.2

Following receipt of stakeholders' comments on the proposed vision and
objectives for the City Region and on the suggested policy approaches, the
LCRCA intends to engage again with stakeholders on proposals for the spatial
strategy for the City Region and on supporting policies which will include housing,
employment and town centres along with strategic infrastructure. This further
round of consultation is anticipated to be held in summer / autumn 2021.

5.3

Given housing, employment and strategic infrastructure (in particular, transport)
are amongst the most likely topics to have cross-boundary implications, it is
intended that West Lancashire Borough Council will continue to engage with the
LCRCA on these matters, both leading up to and during the planned third round
of consultation.

6.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

As there is little direct impact on West Lancashire from the proposed vision and
policy areas of the emerging LCR SDS in its current early draft form, there are
few or no sustainability implications from this report.

6.2

The proposed vision of the LCR SDS in its current form contains the following
elements, which are supported:
 A proactive, collaborative Spatial Development Strategy has been
instrumental in delivering the goal of inclusive growth alongside environmental
responsibility;

Page 804



Effective action to tackle Climate Change has been, and is being, taken; with
measures put in place to increase our resilience to its effects.

7.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are no financial or resource implications for the Council as a result of the
recommendation in this report.

8.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

Given that the recommendation in this report is simply to submit comments on
draft planning documents produced by the LCRCA, there are no risks associated
with this report that would need to be assessed.

9.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

9.1

There are no specific, direct health implications for West Lancashire Borough
from the emerging LCR SDS in its current form. In general terms, consideration
of health implications is a key element of the SDS as it is being prepared, and if a
successful SDS is delivered and implemented as intended, it should have
beneficial health effects not just for the LCR, but for neighbouring areas such as
West Lancashire too, given this Borough's strong linkages with the LCR.

9.2

The proposed vision of the SDS in its current form contains the following element,
which is supported:
 Our health and wellbeing is fundamental in deciding how we shape the places
we live, work and meet.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D (5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) that have been relied on to a material extent in preparing this
Report.

Equality Impact Assessment
There is no direct impact on members of the public, employees, elected members and /
or stakeholders, therefore an Equality Impact Assessment is not required.

Appendices
Appendix A – West Lancashire Borough Council comments on the emerging Liverpool
City Region Spatial Development Strategy.

Page 805

Appendix A
WLBC Comments on emerging Liverpool City Region Spatial Development
Strategy
Please note that the online consultation platform is set up such that comments must
be made on each element individually, although, in addition to the online responses,
a covering email can be sent to the LCRCA with all of the Borough Council's
representations collated in one document.
General comment
West Lancashire Borough Council is supportive of the Revised Draft Liverpool City
Region Spatial Development Strategy (SDS) and raises no objections under the Duty
to Co-operate. This is based upon the fact that the SDS does not suggest that West
Lancashire should meet any of the LCR's housing or employment land development
needs. Furthermore, as the SDS is developed, the Council would ask that the
proposals for the Skelmersdale Rail Link, which stands to benefit both West
Lancashire and authorities within the LCR, is referred to as a priority transport
proposal in the SDS, alongside other major transport proposals within the LCR.

Vision
West Lancashire Borough Council supports the proposed Vision. Achieving this
Vision should have positive knock-on effects beyond the SDS area, including in West
Lancashire. In particular, West Lancashire Borough Council supports the provision
of homes to meet all of LCR's needs (bullet point 6).
It is presumed that, in order to enable progress to be evaluated against the present
situation, the baseline and suitable indicators to measure achievement will be set out
as part of the work on the SDS. This comment also applies to the Objectives.
Objectives
Objective 1 Climate Change and a greener City Region
As with West Lancashire Borough Council's comment on the Vision, it is presumed
that the baseline position will be measured, and that suitable indicators will be
developed to evaluate how well this and the four other objectives are being
achieved.
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this first objective. Addressing climate
change is a top priority in all areas, as is protecting and improving the natural
environment.
Objective 2 Health & Wellbeing
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this objective. Addressing health
inequalities and improving health and wellbeing is also a priority for this Council.
Objective 3 Inclusive Economy
Page 807

West Lancashire Borough Council supports this objective. A flourishing economy
within the SDS area should have positive knock-on effects for neighbouring areas
such as West Lancashire. Consideration could perhaps be given to mentioning in
the policy that benefits extend beyond the LCR boundaries.
Objective 4 Placemaking & Communities
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this objective. Providing the right homes
to meet LCR's needs in full should help reduce development pressure in West
Lancashire.
Objective 5 Social Value
WLCB supports the consideration and maximisation of social value in development.
Suggested Policy Approaches
1 Natural Environment & Green Infrastructure
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach.
Biodiversity considerations extend beyond local authority boundaries and
enhancement of one area should have positive effects in neighbouring areas (and
vice versa).
Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure 'shared' by West Lancashire and the LCR
includes assets such as the Leeds Liverpool Canal, as well as migratory birds and
the places they utilise (Martin Mere / Ribble Estuary and the Sefton Coast); it is
hoped that co-ordinated work between the different authorities can take place on
protecting and improving these shared assets.
Similarly, with flood risk, some of the areas at higher risk of flooding in the Liverpool
City Region border with West Lancashire, and a strategic approach to water
management, flooding and flood risk that involves or takes account of West
Lancashire would be welcome.
2. Energy & Resources
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach. Carbon
reduction is a priority for all areas, as is conservation of mineral and water resources;
good practice in one area should have positive effects in neighbouring areas.
3. Air Quality
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach.
As far as is possible within the remit of planning policy, consideration could be given
to exploring what proactive steps could be taken to improve air quality (i.e. in
addition to requiring Air Quality Impact Assessments and mitigation measures), for
example provision of additional Green Infrastructure.
4. Active Travel

Page 808

West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach. It is
hoped that any walking and cycling network and Green Infrastructure networks in the
Liverpool City Region can align with those in West Lancashire wherever possible
(e.g. medium to long distance footpaths and cycle routes).
5. Health Impact Assessments
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach.
Depending on the timescales for preparation of the SDS and local plans in West
Lancashire and the LCR, it may be possible to consider aligning approaches towards
health impact assessment of local plans and / or proposed developments.
For proposed developments close to the LCR border (including with West
Lancashire), the policy should require that health impacts that extend beyond the
border be assessed / taken into account.
6. Healthy Food Businesses
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach. It is
recognised, however, that limiting hot food take-aways near schools and other
places where young people congregate is just one measure amongst many needed
to tackle obesity.
7. Social Infrastructure
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach.
8. Employment Skills
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach. It is
hoped that, whilst LCR residents are understandably to be given preference in
apprenticeships, West Lancashire residents would also be able to benefit from these
opportunities where appropriate, given the relatively high levels of commuting
between the LCR and West Lancashire.
9. Digital Connectivity
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach. It is
hoped that provision of top specification digital connectivity in the LCR can be
extended to neighbouring areas such as West Lancashire and that the policy could
refer to "LCR and beyond" when discussing digital infrastructure.
10. Social Economy
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach.
It is presumed that 'new social economy uses' will be defined.
11. Rural Economy

Page 809

West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach. Similar
to the LCR, West Lancashire has some of the best and most versatile agricultural
land in the country, including a high proportion of the North West's Grade 1
agricultural land. This Borough is / should continue to be a vital local partner in
terms of food security and reducing food miles.
If the LCR is committed to meeting its own housing needs in full (as set out in the
proposed Vision), this should reduce pressure to use prime agricultural land in West
Lancashire for housing development. (It is acknowledged that housing figures and
distribution are to be addressed in a forthcoming iteration of the draft SDS.)
12. Design Quality
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach. There
may be scope for sharing of good practice / policy on design between the LCR and
West Lancashire Borough Council, depending on the relative progress of different
authorities' local plans and the SDS. It is acknowledged that guidance may also be
issued by central government.
The policy would benefit from including design for low energy use for homes and
businesses, to tie in with Policy Approaches 2 and 13.
13. Housing Standards
West Lancashire Borough Council supports this proposed policy approach.
Provision of good quality, suitable, 'healthy', resource-efficient and climate resilient
homes is as important as the actual numbers of dwellings delivered.
This policy area is likely to link with the Design Quality policy area (12).
If appropriate, this policy area could also give consideration to the upgrading of
existing building stock, although it is recognised that this topic falls largely outside
the remit of planning.

Page 810

Agenda Item 7e
CABINET: 12 JANUARY 2021

Report of:

Corporate Director of Place and Community

Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor David Evans
Contact for further information: Helen Hatch (Extn. 5171)
(E-mail: helen.hatch@westlancs.gov.uk)

SUBJECT: USE OF S106 FUNDS ON ORMSKIRK CYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN
IMPROVEMENTS

Wards affected: Derby and Scott

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To seek authorisation to spend Section 106 funds on cycle and pedestrian
improvements in Ormskirk.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

2.1

To agree the use of £95,000 of S106 monies from planning permission
2012/0887/FUL (1 Hattersley Way, Ormskirk) to provide cycling and pedestrian
improvements in Ormskirk town centre as outlined in this report.

3.0

BACKGROUND & PROPOSALS

3.1

The Council's Green Infrastructure (GI) and Cycling Strategy (2017) recognises
the importance of delivering green infrastructure and cycling in the borough,
including the facilitation of increased levels of cycling. Investment in cycling will
support the sustainable growth of West Lancashire and deliver public benefits,
including health improvement opportunities, environmental improvements and
enhancement of the economy. The current COVID pandemic has shown the
importance of accessing sustainable and active travel and the positive impacts it
can have on physical and mental health and the environment. The Council's

Page 811

priorities include supporting a greener West Lancashire, and enabling everyone to
be healthy, happy, safe and resilient.
3.2

In 2013, a development was approved at 1 Hattersley Way, Ormskirk
(2012/0887/FUL) that required the payment of £100,000 to fund alternative
transport works in the vicinity of the development site. Since the receipt of those
funds, officers have been liaising with Lancashire County Council (2013) to
identify an appropriate project to utilise those monies. Whilst £5,000 of that
money has previously been spent on the delivery of the Pine Grove pedestrian
and cycle link, there remains £95,000 to deliver alternative transport works that
can support the Hattersley (retail) development.

3.3

A scheme has been identified to provide improved cycle and pedestrian
connectivity from residential areas north of County Road to the Hattersley Way
retail development, and beyond to Ormskirk Hospital and Ormskirk School. This
will include:
-

Controlled crossing facilities (toucan crossing) at A59 County Road / Yew
Tree Road junction for the benefit of pedestrians and cyclists (costed at
£109,000);

-

Improved cycle route signage across the north-east side of Ormskirk,
promoting sustainable travel to key destinations, including the retail
development at Hattersley Way, Ormskirk railway station, Ormskirk Hospital
and Ormskirk School (costed at £20,000). A plan of the proposed signage
locations can be found in Appendix A.

The County Road / Yew Tree Road toucan crossing will be formally advertised on
site, with residents immediately adjacent to the proposals notified by letter.
Additional relevant stakeholders will also be notified. The proposed signage is
along existing cycle routes and therefore consultation will not be extensive,
involving cycling representatives and the County Councillor.
3.4

The scheme is thus costed at a total of £129,000, including works, fees and
contingencies. It is proposed that the project will be funded by a combination of
the remaining £95,000 of S106 monies secured from the development at 1
Hattersley Way (2012/0887/FUL) and £34,000 of LCC funding from its 2020/21
Cycle Safety Schemes programme. As the scheme supports cycling and
pedestrian improvements, it accords with the stipulations of the S106 agreement
to provide alternative transport works. Subject to approval by Cabinet (for the
£95,000 contribution), and then by LCC Cabinet (for their £34,000 contribution),
LCC anticipate that work can commence on this project from April 2021, enabling
it to be delivered in the next financial year.

4.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

4.1

The promotion of walking and cycling will have positive sustainability implications
for Ormskirk and West Lancashire, encouraging travel across Ormskirk including
that between the Hattersley retail centre and Ormskirk town centre, bus station,
rail station, hospital, school and Edge Hill University. The Hattersley site is
Page 812

located in close proximity to the start of the proposed Burscough-Ormskirk linear
park, which will begin from the Grove Farm residential development, and so this
project will also help facilitate sustainable connectivity of Ormskirk to Burscough.
The scheme will help reduce congestion, improve air quality and encourage a
more active and healthy lifestyle for those travelling to, in and around Ormskirk.

5.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1

The proposals will be funded through a combination of Section 106 funding (as
per the recommendation at 2.1 above) and Cycle Safety Scheme funding from
LCC, as outlined at paragraph 3.4.

6.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

6.1

There is a limited risk for the scheme's delivery, associated for the Council with a
decision in line with the recommendation at paragraph 2.1 above, given it is
utilising Section 106 monies that the Council is already in receipt of and is
facilitating a scheme that will be delivered by LCC, who are a reliable public
sector delivery partner with a great deal of experience of managing such projects.
The project will also reinforce the Council's image as a "green" Council
committed to delivering improvements to walking and cycling, but also making
connections that enhance the economy of the borough.

6.2

Should the S106 monies remain unallocated, or unspent, by 2026 then there is a
risk that the Council would need to return the monies to the developer. However,
as a scheme has been identified, with delivery expected in 2021/22, it is
considered that there is a very minimal risk of return.

7.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The promotion of walking and cycling through this project will have positive
health and wellbeing implications for those that use it and, indirectly, by reducing
the number of private vehicles using the borough's roads, thus improving air
quality.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.
Equality Impact Assessment
There is a direct impact on members of the public, employees, elected members and /
or stakeholders, therefore an Equality Impact Assessment is required. A formal equality

Page 813

impact assessment is attached as an Appendix to this report, the results of which have
been taken into account in the Recommendations contained within this report
Appendices
1.

Plan showing proposed toucan crossing and cycle route signage

2.

Equality Impact Assessment

Page 814

proposed location for
signal controlled toucan
crossing of County Road
east of Yew Tree Road
(subject to advertising and
consultation)

ty Ro

Coun

ad

w
Ye
ee

Tr
Ro
rsc
o

ug

hS

tre
e

t

ad

Retail
Park

etby

Bu

Primary
School

Gre

Hill

Page 815

Railway
Station

KEY
Proposed improved signage
along cycle routes linking
key destinations.
See example sign below.

Ormskirk School
Wiga
n

Road

Hospital

Example cycle route sign

PROJECT TITLE

Design and Construction

DATE

November 2020
DRAWING TITLE
SCALE @ A4
CONCEPT PLAN FOR CYCLE IMPROVEMENTS
Not to scale
YEW TREE ROAD / COUNTY ROAD, ORMSKIRK

DRAWN BY
CHECKED BY

SCHEME No.

10221

D.Davies
D.Davies

CLIENT No.

SKETCH No.

10221/003

V:\LHS\LNMED\ED\LSS\2020_21 CSS\10221 - YEW TREE ROAD ORMSKIRK\DRAWINGS\601_WORKING\10221_003.DWG

APPENDIX B

Equality Impact Assessment Form
Directorate: Place and Community
Service: Growth and Development
Completed by: Helen Hatch
Date: 3/11/2020
Subject Title: USE OF S106 FUNDS ON ORMSKIRK CYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS
1. DESCRIPTION
Is a policy or strategy being produced or revised:

*delete as appropriate
No

Is a service being designed, redesigned or cutback:
No
Is a commissioning plan or contract specification
being developed:

No

Is a budget being set or funding allocated:

Yes

Is a programme or project being planned:

Yes

Are recommendations being presented to senior
managers and/or Councillors:

Yes

Does the activity contribute to meeting our duties
under the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector
Equality Duty (Eliminating unlawful
discrimination/harassment, advancing equality
of opportunity, fostering good relations):
Details of the matter under consideration:

No

Allocation of S106 funds towards cycle and
pedestrian improvements in Ormskirk

If you answered Yes to any of the above go straight to Section 3
If you answered No to all the above please complete Section 2
2. RELEVANCE
Does the work being carried out impact on service
users, staff or Councillors (stakeholders):
Yes/No*
If Yes, provide details of how this impacts on service
users, staff or Councillors (stakeholders):
If you answered Yes go to Section 3

*delete as appropriate

If you answered No to both Sections 1and 2 provide
details of why there is no impact on these three
groups:
You do not need to complete the rest of this form.
3. EVIDENCE COLLECTION
Who does the work being carried out impact on, i.e.
who is/are the stakeholder(s)?
If the work being carried out relates to a universal
service, who needs or uses it most? (Is there any
particular group affected more than others)?

General public and businesses
Cyclists, pedestrians and highway users will be
affected by the proposals (mainly to their
benefit). This would include a number of
groups with protected characteristics, although
only one is likely to be relevant to the work

Page 817

being carried out.
Which of the protected characteristics are most
relevant to the work being carried out?
Age
Gender
Disability
Race and Culture
Sexual Orientation
Religion or Belief
Gender Reassignment
Marriage and Civil Partnership
Pregnancy and Maternity

*delete as appropriate
No
No
Yes
No
No
No
No
No
No

4. DATA ANALYSIS
In relation to the work being carried out, and the
service/function in question, who is actually or
currently using the service and why?

Cyclists, pedestrians and, with regard the
toucan crossing, road users

What will the impact of the work being carried out be
on usage/the stakeholders?

Pedestrians and cyclists will benefit from
improved crossing facilities and improved cycle
network signage. Highway users may be
affected to a small degree by the installation of
the toucan crossing.

What are people’s views about the services? Are
some customers more satisfied than others, and if
so what are the reasons? Can these be affected by
the proposals?

N/A – adopted highway is managed by
Lancashire County Council. There have been
no surveys of views on this particular section of
adopted highway.

What sources of data including consultation results
have you used to analyse the impact of the work
being carried out on users/stakeholders with
protected characteristics?

N/A

If any further data/consultation is needed and is to
be gathered, please specify:

LCC as Highways Authority will notify affected
businesses and residents prior to works
commencing.

5. IMPACT OF DECISIONS
In what way will the changes impact on people with
particular protected characteristics (either positively
or negatively or in terms of disproportionate
impact)?

Generally no impact. LCC are aware of the
requirements of (for example) those who are
visually impaired.

6. CONSIDERING THE IMPACT
If there is a negative impact what action can be
taken to mitigate it? (If it is not possible or desirable
to take actions to reduce the impact, explain why
this is the case (e.g. legislative or financial drivers
etc.).
What actions do you plan to take to address any
other issues above?

As above, mitigation of any impacts will be a
decision for LCC as highways authority.

No actions for WLBC

Page 818

7. MONITORING AND REVIEWING
When will this assessment be reviewed and who will
review it?

N/A

Page 819

Agenda Item 7f
CABINET: 12 JANUARY 2021

Report of:

Corporate Director of Place and Community

Relevant Portfolio Holder:

Councillor David Evans

Contact for further information: Peter Richards
(Email: peter.richards@westlancs.gov.uk)

SUBJECT: ORMSKIRK EASTERN GATEWAY AND USE OF S106 MONIES ON
THE EDGE HILL CYCLE LINK

Wards affected: Derby, Knowsley and Scott wards

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To propose that the plans prepared for the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway in
partnership with Lancashire County Council be subject to public engagement,
and to seek authority to spend S106 monies from development at Edge Hill
University on the delivery of the Edge Hill Cycle Link as part of the Ormskirk
Eastern Gateway project.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That the proposals for the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway set out within this report
are publicly consulted upon, jointly with Lancashire County Council.

2.2

That the use of £276,480 of S106 monies from planning permission
2011/1079/FUL be agreed for the improved provision for cycling and walking
access between Ormskirk town centre and Edge Hill University as part of the
Ormskirk Eastern Gateway proposals.

2.3

That it be noted that the proposals set out in this report would involve the
commitment of the Council's £185,000 of Capital Funding allocated to the Moor
Street public realm improvements and £565,000 of Heritage Action Zone funding
to the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway, together with £1.25m of Lancashire County
Council LTP3 funding.

2.4

That this report is barred to call-in because a separate report will be taken to
Executive Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 28 th January 2021 to seek their
views on the proposals.
Page 821

3.0

BACKGROUND

3.1

For some time, this Council and Lancashire County Council (LCC) have held the
aspiration to create better cycling and walking links between Ormskirk town
centre and Edge Hill University, and to renovate Ormskirk bus station. Both
projects are referred to in the Lancashire Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3), the
West Lancashire Highways & Transport Masterplan and the adopted West
Lancashire Local Plan.

3.2

In addition, the section of Moor Street from the junction with St Helens Road to
the junction with Moorgate is cluttered and in need of improvement, with
pedestrian safety a concern where pedestrians cross on the bend as Moor Street
turns into Railway Road and where pedestrians cross Moor Street from the bus
station to St Helens Road. Such improvements include the enhancement of the
public realm in the pedestrianised section to Moorgate, to complement the works
done by LCC further west along Moor Street (between Moorgate and the Clock
Tower) a few years ago.

3.3

As these three projects were discussed with colleagues at LCC, and plans begun
to be drawn up, it was clear that it is sensible to consider all three projects as part
of one Programme of Works and that, together, the three projects will reinvigorate
this gateway to Ormskirk Town Centre. As such, the projects have been brought
together under the umbrella of the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway to ensure that all
three projects are delivered in a complementary fashion and in a way which will
create cost-efficiencies in their construction.

3.4

In terms of funding for this Ormskirk Eastern Gateway programme:

3.5



The Council committed £185,000 of capital funding to the public realm
improvements on the pedestrianised section of Moor Street;



The Council has received nearly £500,000 in S106 monies from Edge Hill
University, related to developments on their campus, for "improvement to
local transport infrastructure to improve accessibility to the University
Campus by means other than private car";



LCC has earmarked £1.25m of LTP3 funding to the Edge Hill Cycle Link
and Ormskirk Bus Station projects; and



The Council were successful in a bid to Historic England for a Heritage
Action Zone (HAZ) for Ormskirk Town Centre, which attracted over
£750,000 of funding, £565,000 of which is earmarked to add to the various
sources identified above to deliver the improvements to Moor Street,
Ormskirk bus station and the Edge Hill Cycle Link.

As a result, and excluding the S106 monies already spent on the rail station to
bus station path in 2019/20 as the first step in delivering the Edge Hill Cycle Link,
there is a total fund of nearly £2.4m available for the delivery of these three

Page 822

projects from a combination of the above funding. Approximately £250,000 of
S106 and LTP3 monies has already been committed to the planned
improvements to the Ruff Lane/St Helens Road/Park Road junction as part of the
delivery of Edge Hill Cycle Link in Spring 2021. These Section 106 monies
(£103,860) from planning consent 2009/1052/FUL were committed at the
Council's Cabinet meeting in September 2020.
3.6

WLBC and LCC officers have now prepared proposals for delivering all of the
projects within the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway between 2021 and 2024, and
propose to put those proposals out for public engagement in January / February
2021.

4.0

ORMKSIRK EASTERN GATEWAY PROPOSALS

4.1

The Programme for the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway can be split into the following
phases, as show in the plan below:


Phase 1 - Ruff Lane/St Helens Road/Park Road junction (the improvements
already agreed and planned for Spring 2021)



Phase 2a – pedestrianised section of Moor Street from Moorgate to Railway
Road



Phase 2b – Moor Street from end of pedestrianised section to Bus Station



Phase 3 – Bus Station site (including bus station car park)



Phase 4 – Moor Street / St Helens Road junction

Page 823

4.2

The plans provided at Appendix A show proposals in more detail for each part of
the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway. Phase 1 was agreed by Cabinet in September
(in allocating S106 monies to it), but in relation to the remaining phases, in
summary, the proposals are:
Phase 2a

4.3

This Council consulted on proposals for public realm improvements on this
pedestrianised section of Moor Street in August 2019. These proposals, and the
feedback received from the public, has been shared with LCC, who will now
work-up and deliver the proposals for Moor Street, seeking to match the public
realm created on the rest of the pedestrianised section of Moor Street a few years
ago.
Phase 2b

4.4

The proposals for this small section of Moor Street, over the rail bridge, are
seeking to de-clutter the public realm in this area and narrow the carriageway to
force cars to slow down as they enter this part of the road and then turn right onto
Railway Road. The entrance to this area from the St Helens Road junction will
involve a segregated cycle path crossing from the bus station to travel down St
Helens Road and a pedestrian crossing, and there will be removal bollards to
enable access westwards onto Moor Street from the St Helens Road junction to
be closed off for events and potentially for an extended Market. There will also
be a defined pedestrian crossing of Railway Road for movement between the bus
station and the pedestrianised part of Moor Street. Surface and public realm
materials used in this phase will complement that provided in other phases and
be in-keeping with the Conservation Area.

Page 824

Phase 3
4.5

In relation to the bus station site, the proposals involve the retention of the horseshoe shaped road for buses and coaches using the bus station, with the car park
sitting within the horse-shoe and fronting Moor Street. However, on that same
basic layout, the proposals do involve quite significant changes to the bus station,
including:









4.6

The demolition of the existing bus station building;
The creation of segregated cycle path north-south across the western side
of the bus station (where the building currently is) to connect from the
station-to station path in the north down to the new cycle path on St Helens
Road;
A new "Cycle Hub" for secure, sheltered cycle parking;
The creation of a new, smaller building on the eastern side of the bus
station to accommodate public toilets and facilities for bus drivers;
A change to the exit from the car park;
A redistribution of the bus stands (although there will still be five stands, with
new bus shelters, for regular bus services and a drop-off/pick-up stand
specifically for coaches); and
New surfacing (in keeping with the Conservation Area) throughout the
pedestrian areas of the bus station.

In addition, should additional funding be identified, the new toilet building could be
expanded to provide a small new market office and storage room, to provide an
on-site base within the town centre for managing the Market (this is currently
provided within the existing building). If the additional funding is not forthcoming,
the market office will relocate to Derby Street and the existing storage facility will
be retained
Phase 4

4.7

This last phase of works will involve the completion of the cycle lanes and new
crossings on St Helens Road / Moor Street, to link the sections already provided
through Phase 1 and Phases 2b / 3. In addition, the proposals see a
reconfiguration of the junction of St Helens Road and Moor Street to remove
traffic signals from the junction itself and replace it with a mini-roundabout, and
create a toucan crossing of St Helens Road just south of the junction to enable
safe crossing by cyclists and pedestrians. This phase will follow-on from the
completion of Phase 3, as temporary bus stops will need to be located on St
Helens Road while the bus station is closed for the implementation of Phase 3.
Surface and public realm materials used in this phase will complement that
provided in other phases and be in-keeping with the Conservation Area.

5.0

CONSULTATION PROPOSALS

5.1

Due to the current COVID pandemic and associated local restrictions, the public
consultation on the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway proposals will be a virtual
consultation held primarily online, and it will be a joint consultation between
WLBC and LCC. It will be held for 4 weeks in January / February 2021 and will
be promoted via the Council's social media platforms. For those without access

Page 825

to the internet, there will be a display in the window of a vacant shop unit in
Ormskirk Town Centre showing the plans and providing information, as well as a
press advert in a local newspaper, and both of these will provide contact phone
numbers and email addresses for any queries and comments.
5.2

While the public consultation will be focused on the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway
proposals, the material will need to make reference to LCC's proposals for the
Derby Street Rail Bridge and the upgrade of the SCOOT / UTC system
connecting the traffic signals around Ormskirk's gyratory system, as these factors
have influenced the traffic modelling which the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway
proposals are a part of. It is also appropriate that the consultation acknowledges
that those changes to Derby Street Rail Bridge are currently LCC's proposed
solution to the maintenance issues associated with the bridge. However, the
consultation will be clear that it is not seeking comments on the Derby Street Rail
Bridge proposals.

5.3

Alongside the public consultation, a report detailing the proposals for the Eastern
Gateway will be taken to Executive Overview & Scrutiny Committee to seek their
views on the proposals. The Committee's feedback will be reported back to
Cabinet, alongside the feedback from the public consultation, in March 2021. As
a result, recommendation 2.4 above bars this report to call-in, thus enabling the
public consultation to take place as soon as possible and without delay to the
overall programme for the Eastern Gateway proposals.

6.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The delivery of the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway proposals will bring various
positive benefits for sustainability and the community, including:




improving the public realm in the area, to enhance the historic character;
making walking and cycling easier and safer between the town centre and
Edge Hill University (and Ormskirk Hospital, via Ruff Lane entrance); and
making the town centre more attractive as a visitor destination, and so
supporting the town centre economy.

6.2

Furthermore, the traffic modelling undertaken by LCC suggests that the
improvements will not significantly increase journey times for cars around the
gyratory or create congestion, but will provide much better public transport
facilities in the Bus Station.

7.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The budget currently available for the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway proposals is
outlined in paragraphs 3.4 and 3.5 above, and comes to a total of nearly £2.4m.
The cost of the various elements of the proposals comes to a total of
approximately £2.9m, and this would rise to nearly £3.1m if a larger building is
developed on the eastern side of the bus station, to accommodate the small
market office and storage room, as well as the toilet and bus driver facilities.

7.2

As such, there is currently a budget gap of between £500,000 and £700,000 on
the project. WLBC and LCC officers are looking at various potential sources of
Page 826

funding to meet this budget gap, with the most promising source appearing to be
LCC's recently created Economic Recovery & Growth Fund. WLBC have made
an initial submission to LCC's Economic Development Service to apply for this
Fund, and that submission includes funding to meet this budget gap on the
Ormskirk Eastern Gateway proposals.
7.3

Given that part of the funding for the project involves the remaining S106 funding
collected from developments at Edge Hill University (£276,480 of S106 monies
from planning permission 2011/1079/FUL), paragraph 2.2 above recommends
that Cabinet agree to the allocation of this funding to the Ormskirk Eastern
Gateway proposals, in order to commit the funds to the provision of improved
walking and cycling infrastructure between Ormskirk town centre and the
university campus.

8.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

In relation to the recommendation at paragraph 2.1, given it is only proposing a
public consultation on the proposals, there is not considered to be any significant
risk associated with the recommendation. While there is always the possibility
that some respondents to the consultation may not like aspects of the proposals,
and this can bring a risk of reputational damage to the Council, this should not
prevent the Council from making proposals and engaging with the public on those
proposals, as consultation is a vital part of the process of bringing positive
change to the Borough. The project will also reinforce the Council's image as a
"green" Council committed to delivery improvements to walking and cycling, but
also making connections that enhance the economy of the borough (in this case
in relation to connections between Ormskirk Town Centre and Edge Hill
University).

8.2

There is no risk to the Council of losing the S106 monies if LCC fail to deliver the
scheme on programme as the monies have to be committed by 31 December
2022 and they are being committed through this report.

8.3

In relation to the other sources of funding, there is a risk that, should the Council
not choose to move forward with consultation on these proposals, or
subsequently not take forward any proposals for improvements to this area of
Ormskirk Town Centre, that LCC and Historic England may withdraw their offer of
match funding to reallocate it to projects elsewhere that are making progress.

8.4

Finally, there is also a risk that further funding cannot be secured to meet the
budget gap. While it is considered that this risk is small, given the various
opportunities currently being explored by officers, if the risk was to be realised, a
review of the bus station element proposals would need to be undertaken to
agree an acceptable scheme within the funding parameters. If the scheme has to
be revised it is unlikely to have a material impact on the timescale for delivery.

9.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

9.1

The Ormskirk Eastern Gateway proposals will have health and wellbeing benefits
as they will make it easier to cycle and walk through this part of the town centre
and to the south-eastern side of Ormskirk. They will also create a more pleasant
Page 827

environment in this part of the town centre (which can benefit mental health), and
improve safety at the Moor Street/St Helens Road/Railway Road junctions.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.

Equality Impact Assessment
The Ormskirk Eastern Gateway proposals are likely to have a direct impact on members
of the public, employees, elected members and / or stakeholders and so an Equality
Impact Assessment has been prepared (see Appendix B).

Appendices
Appendix A – Plans of Ormskirk Eastern Gateway proposals
Appendix B – Equality Impact Assessment

Page 828

ine

)

PH

e(

ng

bL
ou

"Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. c Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead
to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Clu

Alp

IB03

Lancashire County Council Licence No. LA100023320

)

eC
o

rk

(PH

Th

B&M

Store

TM4

Willo

Salo

n

nd

sta

w Ba

2

nk

stan

d3

TM5

Salo

n

lay
ov
er

sta
n

ba
y2

d1

TM8

TM3

coa
ch s
ta

la
yo
ve
rb
ay

1

nd

Gold
en L
ion (P
H

)

stand 4

stand 5

TM7

k

TM6

Rkd-B
eds

Ban

SEP1

TM1

Eye care

Cycle

Loun
ge

Taxi

Ran
k

TM2

The

Lillian May
SEP1A

Chapel Galle

ry

Kwik Fit-Ormskirk

Community

Centre

Work Limits

C

SEP2

C

Work Limits

SEP4

C
urs

ery

C
yN

C

Ru

ff L

an
e

Da

SEP3

SEP2

SEP3A

mits

k Li

Wo

rk

Lim

its

Wor

No.
SEP1

DATE

AMENDMENT DETAILS

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

REVISIONS

Design and Construction
0

5 10

20

30
40
50
60
70
SCALE BAR (PLOTTED mm)

80

90

100

PROJECT TITLE

ORMSKIRK EASTERN GATEWAY
DRAWING TITLE

DRAWN BY
CHECKED BY

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

K.HOLLIDAY

1662-EG-GA-001

M.PORTER
1662 & 1964

Page 829

NOV 2020

DRAWING No.

PROJECT No.
SCALE @ A1

DATE

NOT TO SCALE

SHEET No.

1 of 1.

ISSUE PURPOSE

REVISION

CONCEPT

A

Page 831

APPENDIX 2

Equality Impact Assessment Form
Directorate: Place and Community

Service: Strategic Planning
Regeneration & Implementation
Completed by: Peter Richards
Date: 18th November 2020
Subject Title: ORMSKIRK EASTERN GATEWAY PROJECT
1. DESCRIPTION
Is a policy or strategy being produced or
revised:
Is a service being designed, redesigned or
cutback:
Is a commissioning plan or contract
specification being developed:
Is a budget being set or funding allocated:
Is a programme or project being planned:
Are recommendations being presented to
senior managers and/or Councillors:
Does the activity contribute to meeting our
duties under the Equality Act 2010 and Public
Sector Equality Duty (Eliminating unlawful

*delete as appropriate
No
No
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
Yes

discrimination/harassment, advancing equality of
opportunity, fostering good relations):

Details of the matter under consideration:

Proposals are being developed between
WLBC and LCC to improve the eastern
gateway to Ormskirk including providing an
upgraded bus station, new cycle links and
an improved public realm

If you answered Yes to any of the above go straight to Section 3
If you answered No to all the above please complete Section 2

2. RELEVANCE
Does the work being carried out impact on
service users, staff or Councillors
(stakeholders):
If Yes, provide details of how this impacts on
service users, staff or Councillors
(stakeholders):
If you answered Yes go to Section 3

Page 833

*delete as appropriate
Yes

The proposals will improve accessibility to
and through the town centre for all
stakeholders including those using
sustainable means of transport, as well as
those with disabilities. The proposals will
also improve the appearance of Ormskirk
and improve its historic setting. These
improvement should encourage more
residents/visitors to come into the town

centre helping to sustain town centre
businesses as well as supporting active
lifestyles through improved walking and
cycling links.

If you answered No to both Sections 1and 2
provide details of why there is no impact on
these three groups:
You do not need to complete the rest of this form.

3. EVIDENCE COLLECTION
Who does the work being carried out impact on,
i.e. who is/are the stakeholder(s)?

The public who visit, use or live in the town
centre, students travelling to Edge Hill
University, public transport providers and
business in the town centre.

If the work being carried out relates to a
universal service, who needs or uses it most?
(Is there any particular group affected more
than others)?

The proposed improvements should
improve accessibility into the town centre
for all users and in particular improving
access for the disabled.

Which of the protected characteristics are most
relevant to the work being carried out?
Age
Gender
Disability
Race and Culture
Sexual Orientation
Religion or Belief
Gender Reassignment
Marriage and Civil Partnership
Pregnancy and Maternity

*delete as appropriate
Yes
No
Yes
No
No
No
No
No
No

4. DATA ANALYSIS
In relation to the work being carried out, and the
service/function in question, who is actually or
currently using the service and why?

The town centre, carpark, bus station is
used by members of the public, visitors,
businesses and students travelling to and
from Edge Hill University.

What will the impact of the work being carried
out be on usage/the stakeholders?

The proposal should increase the use of the
town centre by all stakeholders which
should help support town centre
businesses. By improving cycle links health
and air quality should be improved. By
improving cycle links to Edge Hill University
congestion in Ormskirk should be reduced.

Page 834
2

The proposed public realm improvements
should improve accessibility for those with
disabilities.
What are people’s views about the services?
Are some customers more satisfied than others,
and if so what are the reasons? Can these be
affected by the proposals?

These proposals should be seen as positive
as they are improvements to areas that will
require substantial maintenance in the
coming years. However the delivery of any
such works will impact upon accessibility
during the construction phase. To reduce
this impact development will be phased and
critical works on Moor Street will be
delivered at a time to reduce the impact
upon business. Communication will also be
critical to ensure stakeholders are fully
informed.
Similarly whilst the bus station
refurbishment is taking place it will be
important to ensure that public transport
provision is maintained so temporary bus
stops will be need to be used.

What sources of data including consultation
results have you used to analyse the impact of
the work being carried out on
users/stakeholders with protected
characteristics?

Consultation has taken place with business
and members of the public in relation to
improvements to the pedestrianised part of
Moor Street. Officers consulted with
representatives of Galloways a sight loss
charity and proposals have been discussed
with members of the Ormskirk Town Centre
management Group. Further consultation
will be required as part of the wider
proposals.
Discussions have also taken place with bus
providers.

If any further data/consultation is needed and is
to be gathered, please specify:

Additional consultation will take place with
the public, businesses and University. A
wider consultation on all proposals will take
place.

5. IMPACT OF DECISIONS
In what way will the changes impact on people
with particular protected characteristics (either
positively or negatively or in terms of
disproportionate impact)?

The proposals will have a positive impact
upon all with protected characteristics in
terms of improving accessibility.
The proposals do include the removal of the

Page 3835

existing changing places facility at the bus
station site. However we believe that this
facility is currently not used and an
alternative improved facility will be provided
in the new Ormskirk leisure centre/health
and wellbeing hub.
6. CONSIDERING THE IMPACT
If there is a negative impact what action can be
taken to mitigate it? (If it is not possible or
desirable to take actions to reduce the impact,
explain why this is the case (e.g. legislative or
financial drivers etc.).

There may be a negative impact for a
temporary period whilst construction work is
taking place on thigs such as access.
However, we will ensure that LCC provide
alternative, appropriate provision and
appropriate diversions are in place.

What actions do you plan to take to address
any other issues above?

Further liaison will need to take place with
LCC and relevant representation groups as
proposals are developed.

If no actions are planned state no actions

7. MONITORING AND REVIEWING
When will this assessment be reviewed and
who will review it?

Page 836
4

The proposals shall be under constant
review by officers until the developments
are complete.

Agenda Item 7g
CABINET:
12th January 2020

Report of: Corporate Director of Place & Community
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor J. Wilkie and Councillor D. Evans
Contact for further information: Tina Iball (Extn. 5197)
(E-mail: christina.iball@westlancs.gov.uk)

SUBJECT: Electric Vehicle Charge Point Provisions

Wards affected: Derby ward and Skelmersdale South
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To seek approval to deliver 32 new electric vehicle charge points (EVCPs) in
Ormskirk and Skelmersdale, utilising funding from the Office for Low Emission
Vehicles (OLEV) and working in partnership with an electric vehicle charge point
provider, BP Chargemaster Ltd.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

2.1

That a bid to the On-Street Residential Charge Point Scheme (ORCS) is
submitted to OLEV, to secure funding for Electric Vehicle Charge Point (EVCP)
provisions in West Lancashire.

2.2

That, if successful in our OLEV application, the Council work in partnership with
BP Chargemaster Ltd to install 16 dual charge points at four selected sites, prior
to the 31st March 2021 deadline.

3.0

BACKGROUND

3.1

The decarbonisation of transport and the move to electric vehicles is now starting
to move at pace. A recent announcement from Government is set to ban the
sale of new diesel and petrol cars by 2030, which revises their original target by
10 years and is part of a wider plan to make the UK carbon neutral by 2050.

3.2

Whilst the demand for electric vehicle charging is currently not significant, we
must recognise that the charging network needs to be delivered first, to instil
confidence in reliability. The presence of prominent charge points in easily

Page 837

accessible locations will encourage residents to consider an electric vehicle as a
reliable and efficient mode of sustainable transport.
3.3

When it comes to plug-in electric vehicles, charging usually occurs off-street, in
garages or driveways. However in many parts of the UK, especially more urban
areas, off-street parking is unavailable to many residents. The ORCS fund is a
£20million grant which has been made available from OLEV for 2020/21 to help
provide charge points in locations with nearby residential properties without the
convenience of off-street parking.

3.4

Local authorities are invited to submit applications that seek up to 75% funding
contribution of the capital costs relating to the procurement and installation of onstreet charge points in residential areas, up to a maximum of £100,000 per Local
Authority.

4.0

CURRENT POSITION

4.1

The Council have been approached by BP Chargemaster Ltd, a leading provider
of electric vehicle charge points, with an offer to contribute the additional 25%
funding required for the project, making this an attractive, nil-cost project.

4.2

Desktop audits and site surveys of Council owned car parks have been
undertaken by BP Chargemaster, at their cost. Working together with the
Strategic Planning, Regeneration and Implementation Manager and the Parking
Officer, four sites have been selected that fulfil the OLEV funding eligibility criteria
and aren’t considered to have a negative impact on parking provisions.

4.3

Each site would be installed with four dual outlet EVCPs, capable of charging two
cars at the same time, totalling 32 new charging points in West Lancashire. This
will utilise eight parking bays at each site at full capacity, however it is recognised
that demand for such provisions is low at present and only two of these bays are
initially required to be designated for electric vehicle charging only. Further bays
can then be added once demand increases.

4.4

The selected EVCP locations are listed below:





Hants Lane, Burcough Street, Ormskirk
The Stiles, Derby Street West, Ormskirk
Sandy Lane Centre, Skelmersdale
Wheatsheaf, Leyland Way, Ormskirk

4.5

The charge points would be fully compliant with technical specifications from
OLEV and will provide a quick charge solution, achieving a full charge in around
four hours or quick top-ups for those on longer journeys. Once installed and
commissioned, the charge points would be registered on a National Charge Point
Registry (NCR) and promoted as nationally accessible charge points.

5.0

ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGE POINT HOSTING AGREEMENT

5.1

The Council would be required to enter into a Hosting Agreement with BP
Chargemaster, initially for a period of three years but with a view to extending if
both parties agree.

Page 838

5.2

The Council would be required to grant BP Chargemaster a licence to install,
own, operate and maintain the charging points on our sites and BP
Chargemaster shall occupy the sites as a licensee only.

5.3

BP Chargemaster would invest the additional 25% funding towards the capital
costs for installation of the EVCPs and be fully responsible thereafter for all
operational costs. This includes all maintenance, repair and replace, insurance,
electricity costs, customer service delivery and provision of usage data to the
Council, OLEV and National Charge Point Register.

5.4

BP Chargemaster will be responsible for the charging costs to users, which will
be set at a competitive rate. In the event that, in BP Chargemasters reasonable
opinion, the operation of any charging point becomes economically unviable at
any time after 3 years from the commissioning date, BP Chargemaster shall, at
its own cost, be entitled to decommission and remove the charging point and
make good any damage caused.

5.5

The Council would be required to agree that the licence granted to BP
Chargemaster is an exclusive licence and we shall not appoint any third party
service provider of EV charging solutions to install, operate or maintain EV
charging solutions at the sites during the term of the three year agreement.

6.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The Councils recently adopted Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan 2030
informs us that 34% of greenhouse gas emissions in West Lancashire originate
from road travel. Along with Central Government action, Local Authorities have a
responsibility to work to reduce emissions from this sector and aid the
decarbonisation of road transport. The Councils new vision and priority for a
Greener West Lancashire looks to support the development of green transport.
The Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan also identifies reducing emissions
from travel as a key priority and this project helps to deliver on these objectives.

6.2

Electric vehicles use energy far more efficiently than standard combustion
engines. There are no vehicle exhaust or carbon emissions at the point of use,
helping to tackle climate change and improve local air quality. This initiative will
help to promote low carbon travel choices and encourage the uptake of electric
vehicles.

7.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The ORCS grant will provide up to £6,500 per charge point installation, up to a
maximum funding value of £100,000, however applications up to £7,500 per
charge point will be reviewed on a case by case basis. This will provide 75% of
the capital costs of procuring and installing the charge points and associated
dedicated parking bays. Working in partnership with BP Chargemaster, who will
contribute the other 25%, makes this a nil cost project for the Council.

7.2

The installation at Wheatsheaf car park is over the £6,500, taking the project just
over the £100,000 mark so OLEV would review this site on an individual basis
and may reject its inclusion. Should this be the case, we could include Lunsdale

Page 839

car park in its place, which does come in under budget but was removed from the
list as it’s a relatively small car park and could impact parking provisions.
Alternatively we could progress with three sites.
7.3

There are no ongoing running costs or maintenance costs for the Council. All
pay and display parking charges will remain in place for users of the charge
points, however the project will result in the loss of at least 8 parking bays initially
for diesel and petrol car drivers. This could have an impact on income from
those spaces but this loss is difficult to quantify as it would depend on usage and
length of stay i.e. a bay could have a new vehicle in it every 30 minutes or the
same vehicle all day. Based on £3 per day, 6 days a week, 52 weeks a year, this
could result in the loss of £936 per bay, per year, however given the parking
capacity of the sites chosen it is thought most people will still find a space on the
car parks with ease and the financial impact will be small.

7.4

BP Chargemaster will be fully responsible for all installation and operation so
there is little resource implications for the Council. The project will be procured
by direct award through the ESPO framework, again reducing the work involved
with delivery. The terms and conditions of the license agreement with BP
Chargemaster will need to be approved by the Legal team.

8.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

This is a low risk project that delivers additional electric vehicle charging
provisions in West Lancashire at no cost to the Council.

8.2

It is recognised that there are many other sites across the Borough that would
benefit from EVCPs however these sites have seen selected as they target our
larger car parks, so as to not significantly impact on parking provisions, and meet
the grant funding installation criteria. Criticism could come from the majority of
sites being located in Ormskirk, with the exception of the Sandy Lane site in
Skelmersdale. This site also already benefits from an EVCP installation.
However, this is an opportunity to expand EVCP provisions in West Lancs, at nil
cost to the Council, so it is recommended that we utilise the funds whilst they are
available.

8.3

There is a concern around the issuing of Penalty Notices for misuse of the bays
designated for EV charging only, especially as some will initially be mixed use.
The bays will be clearly marked with signage and floor markings but some
element of confusion and challenge could be encountered.

9.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

9.1

The move away from petrol and diesel vehicles to electric will also deliver
considerable air quality benefits. Three of the proposed locations for EVCPs are
located in close proximity to the Ormskirk air quality management area and will
provide local residents with access to convenient charging, making the move to
an electric vehicle a more accessible option. Improved air quality has significant
health benefits, especially with regards to respiratory and cardiovascular
diseases.

Page 840

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.
Equality Impact Assessment
There is no a direct impact on members of the public, employees, elected members and
/ or stakeholders, therefore an Equality Impact Assessment is not required.
Appendices
Appendix A: Sites selected for Electric Vehicle Charging Points

Page 841

Appendix A – Sites Selected for Electric Vehicle Charging Points
Car Park

Proposal

No. of
Existing Bays

Project Total
(Ex VAT)

OLEV Grant
Funding (75%)

Hants Lane, Burscough Street,
Ormskirk, L39 1PX

4 x 7kW dual outlet
fast chargers – 8
outlets
4 x 7kW dual outlet
fast chargers – 8
outlets
4 x 7kW dual outlet
fast chargers – 8
outlets
4 x 7kW dual outlet
fast chargers – 8
outlets
32 electric vehicle
charging points

93

£34,660.61

£25,995.46

BP
Chargemaster
(25%)
£8,665.15

137

£33,048.34

£24,786.26

£8,262.09

60

£31,419.37

£23,564.53

£7,854.84

149

£38,659.01

£28,994.26*

£9,664.75

£137,787.33

£103,340.51

£34,446.83

The Stiles, Derby Street West,
Ormskirk, L39 3NH
Sandy Lane, Skelmersdale,
WN8 8LH
Page 842

Wheatsheaf, Leyland Way,
Ormskirk, L39 2XA*
Total Costs

*The costs for this installation are over the £6,500 per charge point, but under the £7,500 maximum so this site would need to be
reviewed on a case by case basis.

Agenda Item 7h

CABINET:
12 January 2021

Report of:

Corporate Director of Transformation & Resources (Committee Lead
Officer) and the Corporate Director of Place & Community

Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor Jenny Wilkie and Councillor Adam Yates
Contact for further information: Julia Brown and Jane Maguire (Extn.5003 )
(E-mail:
julia.brown@westlancs.gov.uk
jane.maguire@westlancs.gov.uk)

and

SUBJECT: FINANCIAL INCLUSION STRATEGY REVIEW – FINAL REPORT OF
THE CORPORATE & ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
Wards affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To consider Committee's draft report, attached at Appendix A, together with the
Financial Inclusion Strategy 2021 – 2024 attached at Appendix 1.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

That the final report of the Committee on the review undertaken on the Financial
Inclusion Strategy and the recommendations contained therein, attached as
Appendix A to the report, together with the Financial Inclusion Strategy 2021 –
2024, attached at Appendix 1, be approved.

3.0

BACKGROUND

3.1

On 5th December 2019 the Corporate & Environmental Overview and Scrutiny
Committee resolved to review the Council Tenants Financial Inclusion Strategy.

3.2

The key objective of the review was to complement and strengthen the Council
Tenants' Financial Inclusion Strategy and to enable provision of supportive debt
recovery for all residents of the borough, with provision for the early identification
of vulnerable tenants for council tax support and signposting.

3.4

Scrutiny recognised that the Strategy needed to build on the existing provision
for signposting and providing information for residents and tenants in particular

Page 843

for those needing access to mental health support as well as maintaining the
provision of the Council's Money Advice Service.
3.6

At the start of the review the Council had to respond to the Coronavirus
pandemic. The setting up of the West Lancashire Together partnership work
included the provision of a Financial Inclusion Service for all residents of the
borough impacted financially by the lockdown and the changes to employment.
The support was provided by the existing Money Advice team supplemented by 6
officers that were trained to give basic advice, and make calls to residents who
needed support and assistance.

3.7

This has resulted in a total of 335 residents seeking support and advice directly
from the Council since April 2020. This service continues to provide advice and
support and the customers who have used it have fed into the review and action
plans for the Strategy.

4.0

CURRENT POSITION

4.1

The attached Strategy provides an update of services that are delivered as a
result of the actions from the Councils Tenant Strategy and an overview of key
aims and objectives linked to the Councils vision.

4.2

The key priorities have been agreed with Scrutiny, through consultation events
with customer surveys and at virtual stakeholder meetings with our key partners.
However, it is recognised that whilst it will continue to be a priority to ensure there
is access to financial inclusion support for all citizens some of the actions to
deliver this may change particularly as the impact of the pandemic on the
economy starts to emerge.

4.3

The review of services with key stakeholders and partners found that there are
some good partnerships and robust services however the focus of services may
change as the needs and landscape changes. It also identified a need for a
borough wide promotion/branding for all existing services.

4.4

It was acknowledged that there needs to be a full analysis of the service
provisions, service needs, the location and who accesses them so that the
Council can support and empower partners to provide a one door referral system
and a more holistic approach to services linked to financial inclusion and other
health and wellbeing provision.

5.0

KEY AIM AND OBJECTIVES

5.1

The key strategic aim is to deliver an enabling and supportive financial inclusion
offer delivered through our partners for all citizens with localised solutions across
the 3 place neighbourhoods.

5.2

The 5 key objectives contained within the strategy are linked to delivery of 4
work streams

The 5 key objectives:

Page 844

 To be a Council that enables and empowers partners, specialist agencies
and stakeholders to work together to deliver a range of relevant and
supportive financial inclusion services that meets the needs for all citizens
 To offer a borough wide brand for services and key messages to promote
awareness and improve access, use and signposting of existing and any
new services
 To be a borough that will tackle digital exclusion and work with partners to
provide other cost effective solutions where there is an identified need
 To build on and develop access and opportunities to training and
employment targeted at key financially vulnerable groups
 To provide a one door, multi-agency offer with access to other advice
services so that citizens facing financial hardship are supported at the right
time and through an effective referral process.
5.1

The 4 work streams will ensure that all residents can:





Access resilient financial health and wellbeing services
Maximise money and opportunities
Access affordable financial products
Make informed financial decisions

5.2

To meet the key objectives linked to the work streams an action plan has been
developed that will focus on ensuring the Council enables and empowers
partners and stakeholders to work together to deliver on a range of suitable and
relevant supportive money advice and debt recovery services across the
borough. The Strategy actions feed into the wider Council vision and priorities.

6.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The actions in this Strategy will improve access to services and ensure that the
Council in partnership with key providers and stakeholders will provide robust
and relevant Financial Inclusion services so that fewer residents are in financial
difficulties.

7.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are some potential financial and resource implications arising from this
report in respect of creating a permanent Money Advisor post. The budget for this
post has been identified for future years and can be met using existing HRA
funding.

7.2

There is a budget requirement for marketing, branding and publicity to be
developed, launched and improved. This would be met from the Customer
experience and Communications budget.

7.3

To explore the potential of commissioning of a study to review current service
needs, current provision and demand would require a request through the budget
Page 845

setting process of approximately £10,000 based on the costs of previous studies.
This would be subject to securing potential matching funding from grants, and
partner agencies to support the research. Once completed existing resources
would be utilised to maintain a Financial Inclusion service directory. This can be
met from existing staffing resource
7.4

Any development of an electronic referral system would need to be met through
the budget and growth bid process in year 2 (2022/23).

8.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

The actions referred to in this report are covered by the scheme of delegation to
officers and any necessary changes have been made in the relevant risk
registers.

9.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

9.1

The proposal will
•
•
•
•

Promote good health and wellbeing and enable people to flourish
Develop and support effective and high quality health and wellbeing
services;
Encourage and enable all people to take a role in identifying and addressing
barriers to improve health and wellbeing;
Increase people's independence throughout their life course and ability to
lead full active lives.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.
Equality Impact Assessment
There is a direct impact on members of the public, employees, elected members and /
or stakeholders, therefore an Equality Impact Assessment is required. A formal equality
impact assessment is attached as an Appendix to this report, the results of which have
been taken into account in the recommendations contained within this report
Appendices
A. Corporate & Environmental Overview & Scrutiny Committee final report
"Financial Inclusion Strategy Review" and "Financial Inclusion Strategy 2021 –
2024 (Appendix 1)"

Page 846

Appendix A

West Lancashire
Borough Council
Report of the Corporate and Environmental Overview & Scrutiny Committee
‘Financial Inclusion Strategy Review’
December 2020

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Page 847

1

Financial Inclusion Strategy Review - Report of the
Corporate and Environmental Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

FOREWORD by the Chairman
Councillor Carl Coughlan

“The Corporate and Environmental Overview & Scrutiny Committee carried out a review
of the ‘Financial Inclusion Strategy’’ in 2019/20. This report sets down the outcomes of
the work undertaken by Members of the Committee during that period.
We started the Scrutiny Project in December 2019 with an overview presentation from
the Financial Inclusion Team Leader from the Income and Financial Inclusion Team, to
assist our understanding of the Strategy. He explained that it was developed for Council
tenants to provide support, specific to changes due to Welfare Reforms in order to limit
the impact on rent collection/arrears and to sustain tenancies. It was identified that an
updated Financial Inclusion Strategy was required to include all Citizens of the Borough.
We would like to thank all those who have been involved in the review in particular those
Members and Officers who took the time to attend meetings.
In addition to the information provided by Officers of the Council, we would like to thank
External Partners who provided their time and input in respect of attendance at various
Stakeholder meetings held.

Page 848

2

A.

THE REVIEW

1.0 BACKGROUND
The Corporate and Environmental Overview & Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 10
October 2019 agreed that the topic selected for review in the 2019/2020 Work
Programme of the Committee would be a "Financial Inclusion Strategy".
A service review had identified the need for an updated Financial Inclusion Strategy.
2.0 TERMS OF REFERENCE
1. To undertake a review entitled ‘Financial Inclusion Strategy’.
2. To review and update the 'Council Tenants Financial Inclusion Strategy 20152018' and consider extending the Strategy to all Residents of the Borough.
3. To present a report of the Committee’s findings together with a Draft 'Financial
Inclusion Strategy' to Cabinet and Council, as appropriate.
3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

B.

1

That the final report of the Committee, together with the "Financial Inclusion
Strategy 2021-2024" be submitted to Cabinet on 12 January 2021 for approval.

2

That the financial implications set out at paragraph F below be noted.

3

That a final review report, together with the "Financial Inclusion Strategy 20212024" attached at Appendix 1 be approved and made available to the public,
partners and stakeholders.

INFORMATION GATHERED

Meeting held on 5 December 2019 (Presentation 1)
The Financial Inclusion Team Leader provided the Committee with a presentation of the
Council Tenants Financial Inclusion Strategy 2015-2018, which outlined the
background, key aims and achievements.
He explained that the Strategy was developed for Council tenants to provide support,
specific to changes due to Welfare Reforms in order to limit the impact on rent
collection/arrears and to sustain tenancies.
The presentation provided information, which included the following:
Key Aims;
 Financial support and advice for new tenants/tenants
 Prepare for changes linked to Financial Welfare Reforms
 Identify financial solutions for tenants
 Signposting - Jobs / Training
 Promotion of Energy Efficiency Schemes
 Tackle digital exclusion

Page 849

3

Key Achievements;
 Creation of additional Money Advisor Post
 Increase of locations/ Money advice drop-ins
 Any day direct debit pilot
 Referrals to Knowsley Credit Union (KCU)
 DWP funding of dedicated recourse for tenants moving to UC
 Referrals to More Positive together Programme
 Work with LCC and Community Resource Centres to provide digital support
 Introduction of Red, Amber, Green, (R.A.G) for New Tenants
Current Position;
 Council Tenant Financial Inclusion Strategy 2015-18 – Actions Complete
 Money and UC Advice Service for Council Tenants embedded within Income
Management Team
 Referrals for Council Tenants to External Partners
 Financial Inclusion embedded within Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2018-2021
 Linked to Digital Inclusion Agenda
The Council also offer signposting residents to the following services;
 Citizens Advice Bureau – DWP Strategic Partner
 West Lancs Debt Advice Service
 South West Lancs Independent Community Advice Network (Evermoor Hub)
 LCC- Welfare Rights Service
 Lancashire Community Finance
 www.westlancs.gov.uk – signpost to external support; Money Advice Service &
National Debt Line
 More Positive Together (Help to get back in work)
 Council Tax Support
 Birchwood Centre
 Knowsley Credit Union (KCU)
 Junk Food Café
Comments and questions were raised in respect of the following;
 Opportunities to receive same advice regardless of Tenancy type
 Under Occupancy (Bedroom Tax)
 Mental Health Support
 Rossendale Enforcement Agency
 Partnership to combat poverty
 CAB Digital Hub Facility
 West Lancs CVS – Infrastructure for Voluntary Service
 Early support – Pathway and Mechanism
 Identify future focus
Meeting held on 5 March 2020 (Presentation 2)
The Financial Inclusion Team Leader provided the Committee with a presentation
outlining the Key Priorities and possible activities to support these.
In discussion, comments and questions were raised in respect of the following:



Type of advice given by CA//WLBC
Location of CA
Page 850

4





Sharing of Strategies with other Partner Agencies
Rental costs – prevention of exploitation
Financial savings / costs of MA Post

Meeting held on 11 June 2020 (Presentation 3)
The Financial Inclusion Team Leader provided the Committee with a Presentation
outlining the Financial Impacts on West Lancashire Residents during the Covid-19
Pandemic.
In discussion, comments and questions were raised in respect of the details included
within the Presentation:

















Money Advice Team - Review of Money Advice Team / Income Team
Future Resources / Funding to support Team
Lockdown March 2020 – Financial Impact on the residents of West Lancashire
Financial Inclusion Assistant Team set up – 222 referrals received
Promotion / Support available to meet the needs of Residents
Future medium term impact - difficult to predict future demand
Government Financial Support
Community Support Fund – Promotion through CVS/Partnership approach
Support moving forward – Budgeting & Money Advice for tenants and residents
Demographics of residents seeking support
WLBC extended support to all Citizens from 24 March 2020 in conjunction with
Strategic Partners including; CA, Digital Inclusion West Lancashire Debt Service,
ICAN, LCC, Money Advice Service, More Positive Together and Birchwood
centre
Mental Health Support – Signposting via Social Media
Importance of collaboration with third sector partners
Types of support available for funeral costs
Free school meals – possibility of Government to extend during Summer
Holidays

Meeting held on 17 September 2020 (Presentation 4)
The Income and Financial Inclusion Manager provided the Committee with a
Presentation which gave an update in respect of the feedback from the Citizen and
Stakeholder meetings that had taken place.
She went on to explain that a number of Citizens and Stakeholders had been involved to
discuss key themes, what worked well and any gaps identified. There were also details
of examples of what worked well in other areas.
She also explained that Stakeholders felt that there is excellent Partnership and
collaboration and that the full range of Services delivered locally in the Community work
well.
In discussion, comments and questions were raised in respect of the details included
within the Presentation:


Supportive debt recovery
Page 851

5


















C.

Digital inclusion – Vulnerable/ accessibility
Money Advice Service - Critical / early intervention
Job opportunities - Key enabler for residents
Focus on best outcome for client
Communicate more effectively
Continue to build on good work of 'West Lancs Together'
Improve data sharing for better integration of Services
Collaborative event sharing - On Line / Fair
Work towards a 'one door' referral offer
Facilitate Stakeholder Meetings – Strategic/Operational level
Loan sharks – Awareness campaign
Knowsley Credit Union – Skelmersdale
Food Banks / Charity Shops
Review/Promote Directory of Services
Services / Branding - Promoted to Citizens
'Kickstart' Government Scheme

Membership of the Committee

2018/19
Chairman: Councillor V Cummins
Vice Chairman: Councillor J Finch
Councillors: Mrs M Blake, T Blane, C Cooper, C Coughlan, S Currie, G Dowling, J
Gordon, G Hodson, K Mitchell, J Monaghan, Anne Sutton.

2019/20
Chairman: Councillor C Coughlan
Vice Chairman: Councillor C Dereli
Councillors: A Blundell, Mrs M Blake, S Currie, J Finch, N Furey, J Gordon, S Gregson,
K. Mitchell, P O Neill.

D.

Officer Support

Lead Officer:

Chris Twomey,
Resources

Corporate

Director

Transformation

&

Scrutiny Support Officer: Jacky Denning, Democratic Services Manager
Julia Brown, Member Services Officer
Officers Reporting:

Jane Maguire, Financial Inclusion Manager
Carl Wallace, Financial Inclusion Team Leader

Legal Officer:

Adam Spicer, Assistant Solicitor

E.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

The actions in the attached Strategy will improve access to services and ensure that the
Council in partnership with key providers and stakeholders will provide robust and
relevant Financial Inclusion services so that fewer residents are in financial difficulties.

Page 852

6

F.

8.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
1

There are some potential financial and resource implications arising from this
report in respect of creating a permanent Money Advisor post. The budget for
this post has been identified for future years and can be met using existing
HRA funding.

2

There is a budget requirement for marketing, branding and publicity to be
developed, launched and improved. This would be met from the Customer
experience and Communications budget.

3

To explore the potential of commissioning of a study to review current service
needs, current provision and demand would require a request through the
budget setting process of approximately £10,000 based on the costs of
previous studies. This would be subject to securing potential matching funding
from grants, and partner agencies to support the research. Once completed
existing resources would be utilised to maintain a Financial Inclusion service
directory. This can be met from existing staffing resource.

4

Any development of an electronic referral system would need to be met
through the budget and growth bid process in year 2 (2022/23).

RISK ASSESSMENT
The actions referred to in this report are covered by the scheme of delegation to
officers and any necessary changes have been made in the relevant risk
registers.

9.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS
The proposal will
•
•
•
•

Promote good health and wellbeing and enable people to flourish
Develop and support effective and high quality health and wellbeing
services;
Encourage and enable all people to take a role in identifying and addressing
barriers to improve health and wellbeing;
Increase people's independence throughout their life course and ability to
lead full active lives.
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this report.
Equality Impact Assessment
There is a direct impact on members of the public, employees, elected members and /
or stakeholders, therefore an Equality Impact Assessment is required. A formal equality
impact assessment is attached as an Appendix to this report, the results of which have
been taken into account in the recommendations contained within this report

Page 853

7

Appendices
1 Draft Final Financial Inclusion Strategy 2021-2024
2 Equality Impact Assessment
.

Page 854

8

WLBC
Financial Inclusion Strategy
2021-2024

Author:
Owner:
Date created:
Next review date:

1

Page 855

Jane Maguire/Carl
Wallace
Jane Maguire
09 November 2020
31 March
2024

Background
What is Financial Inclusion?
The Financial Inclusion Commission defines a financially inclusive society as “one in
which financial services are accessible to all, easy to use and meet people’s needs
over their lifetime. Financial inclusion also means that people have the skills and
motivation to use financial services, and to benefit meaningfully from them.” In effect,
financial inclusion covers a wide range of issues, including housing, debt, fuel
poverty, affordable loans, health and access to services.
Why do we need a Financial Inclusion Strategy?
As a Council we are committed to achieving our vision of West Lancashire Together:
the place of choice to live, work, visit and invest in.
The benefits of having a strategy that supports financial inclusion are wider than just
money, by helping to improve overall health and wellbeing, independence and job
opportunities across the borough.
By working to reduce financial inequalities, we can deliver two of the Councils key
priorities of creating empowered, engaged and inclusive communities, and everyone
to be healthy, happy, safe and resilient.
Good financial inclusion work and services in the Borough will support sustained
improvement for the community, for individuals and families, and allow individuals to
make informed choices through accessing basic financial services.
Benefits For families/Individuals:
 Access to lower bills
 Lower transaction and borrowing costs
 Ability to deal with financial shocks
 Better physical and mental health outcomes
 Access to better housing
Benefits for the local community:
 Local services
 Settled and stable communities
 More money spent locally to protect jobs and services
Benefits for the Council/council tax payers and tenants
 Reduction in council tax and rent debts
 Lower homelessness presentation
 Greater tenancy sustainability
 Less debt recovery and enforcement action

2

Page 856

Who is Financially Excluded?
Without services residents will be faced with being excluded financially. Those who
are excluded are often those on low incomes, disadvantaged and in poverty and are
unable to engage with the financial services necessary to play a full part in modern
society.
The figure below illustrates the issues faced by those financially excluded who as a
result are unable to access financial services for everyday life and as a result:





Are financially at risk as unable to secure insurance for homes/car
Can struggle to budget and manage money or plan for the unexpected
Have difficulty paying fuel bills, food bills, rent and council tax and may live in
poor quality housing
Do not know how to make the most of the money they have and are on low
income or rely on welfare benefits

Poor Credit
Rating
Rent/ Mortgage
Arrears

Multiple Debts

No Affordable
Credit

No Insurance

No Savings

Financially
Excluded

Poor Financial
Knowledge and
Understanding

Welfare
Reforms

No Bank
Account
Low Income or
Benefits

There are many layers to being financially excluded. A person can be affected by
one or multiple issues with each layer adding an additional barrier to gaining
affordable credit and services and creating financial exclusion:
Poor credit rating / no affordable credit


Should a resident with poor credit rating have an essential item such as a
washing machine break they would be unable to get affordable credit and
would have to rely on organisations such as Bright House with an interest rate
of 49.3% which is much higher compared to high street interest rates. For
example Argos has an interest rate of 29.9% but allows interest free
payments for 6 months.
3

Page 857

Mortgage arrears


Missing a mortgage payment this will put a default marker on a credit file
which would dramatically decrease a residents credit score making it
impossible to get affordable credit

Savings
According to The Money
Charity, in 2017, 9.79m
households in the UK had no
savings at all with a further
3.53m with savings between
£1 - £1,500.
Without savings many people
face increasing debt issues
due to having to rely on credit
for emergency situations.
Welfare reforms
There have been multiple welfare reforms since 2010:
 Local Housing allowance – reduced the level of support for those in the
private sector and receiving help with their rent
 Under occupation – reduced the level of support for those in social housing
and receiving help with their rent
 Benefit cap – ceiling on the level of benefit payments per household
 Council Tax reforms – reductions in entitlement of working age claimants from
a 10% reduction in total payments to local authorities
 Employment and support allowance – replacement of incapacity benefit;
greater conditionality, more stringent medical tests and later removal of
benefit related to the work related activity group
 Tax Credits – reductions in payments and eligibility for many households
 Benefit freeze – freeze on benefit uprating for 4 years causing increase
poverty to benefit reliant households
 Universal Credit – reduced benefit for many households when transitional
protection ends
Many welfare reforms have reduced the income of benefit reliant households
No bank account
It is estimated by the Financial Conduct Authority that 1.3 million UK adults do not
have a bank account. Not having a bank account can be limiting:
 Inability to pay by direct debit
 Inability to get benefits direct
 Discounts offered by paying by direct debit
 No online banking or transfers
4

Page 858




Less access to affordable credit
Inability to have wages paid securely which may limit employment

Low income
In West Lancashire there are between 21-28% of households with children under 16
living in relative poverty and also another 21-28% living in absolute poverty
according to government statistics (Children in low income families: local area statistics 2014/15 to 2018/19
ONS).

Relative poverty is defined as 'households that receive 50% less income than
average median incomes'
Absolute poverty is defined as 'condition where a household income is insufficient
to afford basic necessities of life (food, clothing, shelter etc)
Food Insecurity
In West Lancashire foodbanks and use of them has increased in recent years. The
Council have seen a 37% increase in vouchers being issued since 2017. According
to The Trussell Trust, nationally the need to access food banks has increased by
73% in the last 5 years and by 89% in the last 12 months.
Fuel Insecurity
Fuel insecurity is very closely linked with foodbank issues. Nationwide it is an ever
growing issue. Government statistics on fuel insecurity show that in 2018 it was
estimated that nationally 2.4 million households were recorded as having fuel
insecurity, and in West Lancashire this was 5,477 households (11.5%) compared to
10.3% nationally. This year Citizens Advice have supported 684 residents with fuel
insecurity issues in West Lancashire.
Issues with fuel and food insecurity link to the wider health inequalities in the
borough where there is a difference in life expectancy of 8 years for those in
Skelmersdale compared to Ormskirk, and food and fuel poverty can often be linked
with those in social housing.
Poor financial knowledge or understanding
Having poor financial knowledge or understanding can lead to costly credit or
services which can reduce available income, leading to inability to budget and pay
bills. This can lead to defaults on a credit file which can make residents financially
excluded from accessing products and services at a reasonable cost and so paying
a poverty premium.
No insurance
According to the Association of British Insurers 1 in 4 households in the UK do not
have home contents insurance. There could be many reasons for not having home
contents insurance for example poor financial knowledge or understanding and / or
lack of ability to afford the insurance. With no insurance, if an emergency occurred it
5

Page 859

could result in available household savings being depleted or the need to rely on
credit which may then stretch the household budget
Multiple debts
According to the Office of National Statistics in 2018 UK financial debt (excluding
property debt) was £119 billion. This is averaged out per household at £4,500. This
can be typically broken down into:
 Arrears outstanding
 Mail order purchases
 Overdrawn accounts
 Hire purchase
 Credit / store cards
 Loans
Mental health and wellbeing
It is well known that financial exclusion caused by any one of the factors described
can exacerbate and undermine a person's health, causing stress, anxiety and
depression. Research by the Money and Mental Health Policy Institute shows that
half of people in problem debts in England also have mental health problems which
can affect the ability to then manage money and to communicate to creditors.
Research by the Personal Finance Research Centre shows that in a year in debt
collection a frontline member of staff can have over 140 disclosures about mental
health problems.
Who is most likely to be Financial Excluded?
A whole community can suffer as a result of under-investment in financial services. It
is therefore important that as a Council and housing provider, we prioritise services
to deliver improvements and benefits by having innovative ways to maximise income
and tackle financial exclusion for citizens across the 3 Neighbourhood communities.
The impact of financial exclusion can have a greater effect on those on low incomes
and the recent pandemic has shown that since April 2020, 335 residents made direct
contact with the Council in addition to the contact made by tenants. There were 230
cases in the first three months of lockdown. This was an increase of 55% in new
advice cases at this time. Of the requests from residents many needed assistance
with issues including:
 Help with paying rent / mortgages
 Council tax payments
 Council tax support
 Paying energy bills
 Food
 Debt issues
 Benefit issues
To address the increased demand identified through Covid-19, 6 additional staff
were trained to give basic advice, make calls to residents who needed the support
and to provide assistance.
6

Page 860

We have completed a follow up survey with residents who received support and the
feedback received was that the support provided was valuable and led to positive
outcomes.

Within our communities those most likely to be affected and financially excluded are







Those on benefits or low income, seeking work
Lone Parents, young people (aged 18- 24)
The over 60s
Those with disabilities
Households in social housing
Households in the private rented sector, and the homeless

CONTEXT AND OVERVIEW
The June 2019 Local insight report from Oxford Consultants for Social Inclusion
(OCSI) identified that of the 113,880 people living in West Lancashire:
 23% have no qualifications
England
 36% aged 16 – 74 in fulltime employment
 15% of children are living in poverty
England
 2% of households lack central heating
 20% of households have no car
England
 20% have a limiting long term illness
England

compared to 22% across
compared to 39% in England
compared to 17% across
compared to 3% across England
compared to 26% across
compared to 18% across

Many of these statistics and the landscape since the 2015 tenants Financial
Inclusion strategy will have altered significantly due to the impact on the economy
during lockdown and the continuing restrictions faced due to Coronavirus pandemic.
The current impact on businesses and employment and poverty has been well
reported. For example in
 September 2020 the ONS has reported that in West Lancashire the numbers
on Jobseekers allowance has increased by 118% compared to the 117%
national average since the pandemic.
 The Trussell Trust the charity behind the many of the UK’s food banks, have
reported an 89% increase in the number of emergency food parcels provided
in April 2020 compared to the same month in 2019. The childrensrighttofood
estimate 1.4 million children receive free school meals and a further 1.4
million face poverty but are not eligible for free school meals.
 During the period from April 2020 the numbers of residents in the borough
claiming Universal Credit (UC) increased from 5102 to 8752 a 71% increase.
There was a 10% increase in UC cases for those who hold a Council tenancy
 Community Finance solutions/Salford University/ Carnegie trust have in their
report "Fear and Loaning" identified an increase in payment holidays on
loans, and a decline in loans being sought by community providers such as
Credit Unions."
7

Page 861

National Picture - Poverty
The UK Poverty 2019/20 Joseph Rowntree Foundation report, more than 1 in 5 of
the UK population (22%) live in poverty made up of 8 million working-age adults, 4
million children and 2 million pensioners. This equates to around 14 million people
of which options are restricted by their circumstances. The key findings in the report
show that 'Trends in poverty levels are driven by changes in four main factors:





The employment rate
Earnings,
Benefits and other income like pensions
Housing costs.

Those who are financially excluded often find themselves paying a poverty
premium, this can be because
1. Very few people have the time or know-how to compare the prices of every
product or service that they buy and then switch to better deals.
2. Many people are on insecure zero-hours contracts, or paid weekly with uneven
income levels. They don’t have the money up front to make cheaper annual
payments, and instead are charged high levels of interest to pay on a monthly
basis. Many products and services haven’t been designed with low income
consumers in mind.
3. Research in 2018 by Age UK found that whilst there has been an increasing
trend for internet use among the older population the majority of those 75 and
over are not on line and 79% of digital exclusion is among those 65 and over. In
addition to not owning a computer or internet-enabled device, this may be may be
down to a lack of confidence in using the internet, or a lack of trust and fear of
crime. With comparisons between providers, be that of energy or insurance, only
possible through the internet, this “digital by default” approach excludes
consumers who prefer face-to-face or telephone interaction

All the issues outlined above continue to contribute to financial exclusion for
residents in the borough.
The need for supportive debt and financial services is important to ensure that we
have inclusive healthy communities. It will become an increasing priority as we see
changes in demand when furlough schemes and central government financial
support starts to be withdrawn and as communities start to work to economic
recovery from the impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic.

Current Provision

8

Page 862

The Council Tenants' Financial Inclusion Strategy and three year delivery plan for
2015 – 2018 was developed to address a time when key reforms were introduced
including the welfare reforms which in terms of financial inclusion had a particular
relevance to those renting homes from the Council.

We are proud of the achievements that have been a result of delivering the key aims
of the strategy for the Council and its tenants.












The Money Advice service consists of a team of 4 officers who provide money
advice and support for Council tenants including debt advice and maximisation of
income, through the theme of "Your Money Matters".
They have contributed to £659,978.67 additional income being secured in
2019/20 for Council tenants through grant, benefits, backdated housing benefits,
and discretionary housing payments of this £325,262 was paid directly to tenants
rent accounts supporting the sustainability of their tenancy. The team have been
successful year on year in maximising income and financial support.
The team have supported 3262 tenant with issues relating to and making new
claims for Universal Credit (UC) since 2014 and continue to provide dedicated
resources for those new to UC. Officers work jointly with the DWP offering
services at the Job centre plus
The team offer drop in sessions across the borough to support those seeking
money advice at
o Job Centre, Skelmersdale & Ormskirk
o The Ennerdale Centre
o The Birchwood Centre
o Children Centres
The team have contributed to the prevention of homelessness offering advice
and support before enforcement action is taken for tenants with rent arrears. In
the last 12 months this service is also been extended to private tenants and
residents who present to the Homelessness advice and prevention team.
The team offer a supportive affordability assessment and checks pre tenancy to
ensure offers of accommodations are affordable and sustainable
The team carry out regular awareness campaigns and information updates on
affordable credit and the Credit Unions

In addition to the Council's Money Advice service the Council work with and support
a number of key partners to deliver Financial Inclusion services these are included in
appendices A
The Council now want to build on the success of the Tenants Financial Inclusion
Strategy and the existing services that are currently delivered to ensure that there is
a comprehensive offer for all citizens of West Lancashire and to tackle poverty and
financial inequalities across the borough.
This will meet the Councils vision of being: West Lancashire Together; the place of
choice to live, work, visit and invest in.
This strategy will specifically support the delivery of one of the key Council priorities;
Everyone to be healthy, happy, safe and resilient.

9

Page 863

We want to continue to support those in need, by providing access to a
comprehensive, relevant range of appropriate financial wellbeing services, as well as
offer the knowledge, skills and confidence to maximise residents own financial
stability and reduce the negative impact financial hardship can bring to a person’s
overall health and wellbeing.
The strategy was in review during the Covid19 pandemic and this has heightened
the focus of the Council due to the financial impact on business, the economy and
households earnings and income across the borough.
It has also changed the landscape of financial inclusion since the development of the
last strategy and therefore the evidence and statistical data locally needs to be fully
reviewed to ensure there is relevant research carried out to update the population
data, indexes of poverty and indicators of financial exclusion and to update the
picture of those who are accessing debt and money advice services, and what
services will be most effective post Covid19. This will help us to understand what
services are needed to sustain the work and priorities in the coming years.
This strategy will build on the current services with a view to ensuring that the
changing landscape is mapped to inform future progress and activities linked to
changes in priorities due to the impact of Covid19
This strategy will support the strategic goal of the Council to reduce inequality as
outlined in the in the 2018- 2021 Health and Wellbeing strategy. It will build on the
current policies and plans for service delivery relating to homelessness, fuel poverty,
food insecurity and wellbeing.
This strategy has been developed to build on the existing service provision with the
key aim of empowering and enabling a West Lancashire wide supportive advice
service.
To ensure that the focus of the strategy was relevant, we have worked in
collaboration with our service users, partners and stakeholders. Those who had
accessed services during the pandemic were asked for feedback through a call back
survey, and we held virtual stakeholder sessions with our key partners. The
feedback from this consultation has been used to inform the main focus of the
strategy and the key objectives and has offered a robust informed approach for the
work streams.
The 5 strategic objectives that have been developed link into the key work streams
that emerged as part of the consultation with members of Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, key stakeholders and partners and focus on an enabling financial
inclusion offer for the citizens of the borough.
Key Strategic Aim
To deliver an enabling and supportive financial inclusion offer delivered
through our partners for all citizens with localised solutions across the 3 place
neighbourhoods.

10

Page 864

OBJECTIVES AND KEY WORK STREAMS
The previous strategy identified 8 key delivery objectives, for services for tenants.
These have been reviewed and remain relevant for all residents of the borough in
the context of the changing landscape and need for financial services.
Providers, customers and partners reviewed the key areas that are delivering well
and the current gaps which will form the 5 key objectives for the future focus of the
strategy for debt and money advice in the borough.
OUR 5 OBJECTIVES







To be a Council that enables and empowers partners, specialist agencies and
stakeholders to work together to deliver a range of relevant and supportive
financial inclusion services that meets the needs for all citizens
To offer a borough wide brand for services and key messages to promote
awareness and improve access, use and signposting of existing and any new
services
To be a borough that will tackle digital exclusion, and work with partners to
provide other cost effective solutions where there is an identified need
To build on and develop access and opportunities to training and employment
targeted at key financially vulnerable groups.
To provide a one door, multi-agency offer with access to other advice services
so citizens facing financial hardship are supported at the right time and
through an effective referral process

OUR KEY WORKSTREAMS
To deliver on our objectives for all residents we have focused on 4 main
themes:

Residents – Resilient Financial Health and Wellbeing Services:
We will:
Understand the needs for the borough and have a range of services that are
promoted and well publicised and easily accessible for those in financial hardship.
Work closely with stakeholders and partners to develop and deliver services offering
a range of debt advice, alongside health and wellbeing services that is easy to
access, meets demand and is linked to reducing financial exclusion
11

Page 865

Promote take-up and marketing campaigns and promote on line free advice and
signposting to:








Citizens Advice
The Money Advice Service
Step Change
The National Debt Line
Debt Support Trust
Mental Health and Money Advice
Pensionwise

Support and promote a range of debt recovery solutions, and have a Council debt
recovery policy/approach, ensuring those who recover debts provide supportive,
plain English letters and signpost debtors to free help and support and in accordance
with legislation, the breathing space guidance and good practise so ensuring
reasonable timescales to establish repayment plans.
Research food poverty and insecurity understanding the current use of foodbanks,
with a view to understanding the gaps in accessing them and any wider welfare
support and issues linked to food inequalities.

Residents - Maximise Money and Opportunities:
We will:
Provide financial health checks and income maximisation through various partners
across the borough
Work closely with new tenants and those who may lose a home to maximise income
and sustain and maintain tenancies/homes
Continue to provide a highly trained and well-resourced Money Advice service for all
Council tenants
Ensure all frontline staff are knowledgeable and can offer or signpost residents to
appropriate financial inclusion advice/services across the borough.
Promote and support training and education programmes to get residents skilled and
in employment working with the DWP and other partner agencies
Maximise opportunities for training and employment utilising the Kickstart
programme, apprenticeship schemes, supporting new initiatives and business
growth through the Ambassadors programmes.

Residents - Access affordable financial products:
We will:
12

Page 866

Signpost or refer residents for help with fuel related advice or access to energy
grants and any national or local initiatives
Assist households in fuel poverty by providing advice and accessing social tariff
checks, tariff options and home energy checks, winter awareness campaigns
Promote local credit unions and low cost loan schemes, and low cost
furniture/whitegoods /recycled furniture schemes
Recognise that those on low incomes may face barriers to access bank accounts
affordable credit and other financial products and support and seek solutions by
working in partnership for example with banks and credit score companies.
Promote access to low cost home contents insurance to Council tenants and
Leaseholders.

Residents - Make informed financial decisions:
We will:
Work with partners to promote and develop digital skills and ICT facilities so
residents are empowered to make informed choices
Develop and support on-line learning e.g. Learn My Way, and work in partnership on
digital inclusion projects, promoting and supporting local and national programmes
that encourage and guide use of digital services.
Work in partnership with training and learning centres to provide financial awareness
programmes.

13

Page 867

Financial Inclusion Strategy: Action Plan
The Financial Inclusion (FI) action plan will be adjusted to respond to budgetary constraints, and emerging priorities

Theme

Resilient Financial
Health and Wellbeing
Services

Actions

Page 868

Explore the potential of commissioning a
study to review current demand for FI
services identifying who is accessing the
services and understand what and where
we have the services and if it meets current
needs for the borough
Update and develop a service directory,
annually review and promote widely across
all partners, stakeholders and customers

Resource/Lead

Fiona Graham/Simon
Burnett/Jane Maguire

Carl Wallace/CVS

Explore the viability of delivering multiple
services through one door /co location
linked to those seeking FI services and have
a need for wider mental health/wellbeing
and other support services

Carl Wallace &
Associated partners

Investigate and explore the potential for
technical solutions for data sharing
mechanisms to support effective referral
pathways for services through partnership
working

Carl Wallace/ Jane
Maguire/BIDs

Explore improved and greater connectivity

Fiona Graham/Simon
14

Outcome

Understand needs of the
borough and ensure right
services are supported in the
right areas
All residents and stakeholder
aware of service provision
across the borough
Each of the 3
neighbourhoods with a
Leisure centre or
neighbourhood community
facility will have access to a
range of support services
Partners and stakeholders
have 1 referral pathway
supporting early
intervention, prevention and
the best customer outcome
and experience
Partners and stakeholders

Priority

Jan 2022

Mar 2021

Mar 2024

Dec 2023

Mar 2024

Theme

Resilient Financial
Health and Wellbeing
Services

Actions

with our partners in Health to link FI
services into the overall 'wellbeing
approach'

Page 869

Develop and promote a borough wide
marketing theme and promotion for debt
advice
Improve the information on the Councils
website and simplify access points and
messages with a focus on mental health
Set up regular stakeholder sessions to
review FI services, the progress of the
strategy, and best practice, gaps and
improvements. Seeking to overcome
operational issues e.g. on line
webchats/money advice exhibitions/fairs
Investigate alternative collection solutions
and promote a range of supportive debt
advice along with a Council corporate debt
policy
Work to ensure the outcomes from the

Resource/Lead

Outcome

have 1 referral pathway
supporting early
intervention, prevention and
the best wellbeing outcome
for the customer
Commitment to increase and
Jane Maguire/Carl
improve knowledge and
Wallace/Elizabeth Morgan access for all residents
supporting early intervention
Wider knowledge for
customers of the range of
Carl Wallace/Elizabeth
support and services
Morgan
available and easier access
for all residents

Priority

Burnett/Jane
Maguire/CVS

Carl Wallace/Jane
Maguire

Robust services meeting the
needs of the residents and
that services are innovative
and not duplicated.

May 2021

May 2021

July 2021

Council updated on progress
Fiona Graham/Jane
Maguire/Carl
Wallace/James Pierce

Supportive and transparent
approach to recovery for
debts owed to the Council

Mar 2024

Peter Morrison/Jane

Services meet the needs of

Sept 2022

15

Theme

Actions

Resource/Lead

research into food insecurity, links in with FI Maguire/Carl
service provision
Wallace/Fiona Graham

Page 870

Maximise Money and
Opportunities

Be innovative and create and support
opportunities for partners to secure
external funding for FI services.

Tracy Berry/Carl Wallace

Develop a programme of annual take up
campaigns eg Council tax support and
supported online events eg Winter
warm/Uswitch/Pensionwise

Carl Wallace/Tracy
berry/Tina Iball

Develop and promote financial health
checks linked to borough wide community
engagement events
Investigate and promote opportunities and
referral process for employment and
Kickstart programme
Develop referrals at pre tenancy for under
25s in to apprenticeships and work
programs
Look at new ways of promoting More
Positive Together's services to support
removing barriers to getting back into

Outcome

Priority

the borough

Council enabling and
supporting partners to
deliver services that meet
needs
Maximising income to
reduce poverty, tackling
digital exclusion and
promoting cost effective
solutions

Ongoing

June 2021

Carl Wallace/Citizens
Advice/CVS

Maximising income to
reduce poverty

Sept 2021

Carl Wallace/DWP/Danny
Crangle

Ensuring wrap around
support for moving people
back into employment

May 2021

Nicola Bradley/Jane
Maguire/Carl
Wallace/Danny Crangle

Supporting young people
into work to support tenancy
sustainability

Mar 2022

Carl Wallace/DWP/Danny
Crangle

Maximising support in
getting people back into
employment

Aug 2021

16

Theme

Actions

Resource/Lead

Outcome

Priority

employment using priority referrals from
MA/CA/DWP

Page 871

Maximise Money and
Opportunities

Promote online training opportunities for
Danny Crangle/ Carl
back in work programs with other providers Wallace

Tackle digital exclusion and
removing barriers getting
people closer to the
employment market

Mar 2022

Identify and maintain / safeguarding of the
current money advice services for tenants in Fiona Graham/Jane
Maguire
social housing

Ensuring continuity of service
provision for council tenants

Mar 2021

Continue to promote and expand Your
Money Matters for Council tenants
Consider other promotions and
opportunities with partners where digital
vulnerabilities cannot be overcome`
Work with partners to have effective
referral pathways for residents for help
with fuel related advise, access to energy
grants and to any national or local
initiatives, ensuring that promotions
focused during Winter months
Expand use of furnished tenancies and

Jane Maguire/Carl
Provision of supportive FI
Wallace/Elizabeth Morgan service to tenants

June 2022

Tracy Berry/Rachel
McVey/Carl Wallace

Identifying support available
for digitally vulnerable
tackling digital exclusion and
promoting cost effective
solutions

Sept 2022

Carl Wallace/Tracy
Berry/Tina Iball

Identifying support available
for fuel poverty, maximising
income and cost effective
solutions

Dec 2021

Nicole Bradley/Paul

Reducing irresponsible

Dec 2022

17

Theme

Actions

Resource/Lead

provision of white goods for Council tenants Waring
Investigate and work with partners to
promote furniture recycle programmes

Page 872

Access affordable financial
products & making
informed financial decision

Carl Wallace/Paul Waring

Develop a program of awareness campaigns
and work with partners to support events
Elizabeth Morgan/Carl
linked to accessing food and fuel initiatives,
Wallace
and benefit take up campaigns
Investigate gaps to those unable to access FI
services and consider alternative ways of
supporting older residents to get on line
Promote low cost home contents scheme
and other any other related services
Support and promote on line Learn my way
and work in partnership to encourage, train
and guide use of digital services

Outcome

lending and maximising
income
Reducing irresponsible
lending and maximising
income and

Priority

Sept 2022

Identifying support and
provision of relevant services
to tackle food/fuel poverty
and maximising income

Sept 2021

Carl Wallace / Guy
Simpson/BIDs/AgeUK

Supporting digitally
vulnerable to get on line

March
2023

Elizabeth Morgan/Carl
Wallace/Nicola Bradley/

Promoting financial
awareness
Working with partners to
provide training and tackle
digital exclusion
Promoting tenancy security
and supportive FI services at
sign up
Working with partners to
remove barriers to banking
and supportive FI services
Working with partners to

March
2023

Tracy Berry/Rachel
Mcvey/Carl Wallace

Develop pre tenancy awareness training

Nicola Bradley/Paul
Waring/Carl Wallace

Set up links with local banks and credit
unions to set up bank accounts

Carl Wallace

Promote alternative options to high interest Carl Wallace
18

Jan 2022

Sept 2022

June 2021
Oct 2022

Theme

Actions

Resource/Lead

lending through publicity. Investigate
responsible lending options, credit scoring
products and services and support and
develop relationships with Credit Unions

Outcome

Priority

promote responsible lending

Page 873

Awareness campaign on loan sharks

Jane Maguire/Carl
Promoting and awareness of
Wallace/Elizabeth Morgan services for those affected

Work in partnership with training and
learning centres eg West Lancs college and
local schools to provide financial awareness
training

Carl Wallace

Promoting financial
awareness

March
2023

Develop a Financial Confidence scheme
working with partners

Carl Wallace/Danny
Crangle

Promoting financial
awareness and supportive
financial confidence

March
2023

Dec 2021

Officers will commit to reviewing progress on the detailed actions quarterly and will provide an update on progress annually to
Council.
We will hold an annual event with stakeholders to monitor progress and develop new ideas and initiatives to meet emerging
priorities.
We will continue to maintain and build partnerships with those who help to contribute to Financial Inclusion services for the Borough
through regular stakeholder meetings

19

Thank-you to the Key Stakeholders who were involved:

Page 874












West Lancashire CVS
Citizens Advice
NHS Clinical commissioning group
BTLS Revenues and Benefits
Birchwood Centre
Age UK
West Lancashire Debt Advice
DWP
More Positive Together
LCC Mental Health Services

20

Organisation

Money Advice

Age concern central
lancashire

Age uk lancashire

Jobcentre plus

Page 875

Lancashire county
council

West Lancashire
Debt Advice

Type of support

Financial Inclusion

Support for
Provide a money advice and support on debt and
benefits to tenants of the council, potentnail
homeless those taking a new tenancy

Financial Inclusion, mental Age concern central lancashire are a charity
offering support to anyone aged 18 and above
heath, education
Aims to make a positive difference to the lives of all
Financial Inclusion, mental older people in the county and make later life a
more fulfilling and enjoyable experience
heath, education

0800 169 0190

Help with urgent needs furniture and supporting
people with appealing benefit decisions

County Hall,
Fishergate, Preston
PR1 8XB

0300 123 6701

Benefit appeals work &
Urgent needs fund

Education

Email address
carl.wallace@westlancs.gov.uk

143 Station road,
01772 629504
Preston PR5 6LA
Suite 22 railway house 01254 773440
railway rd chorley pr6
0hw
Whelmar House,
Southway,
Skelmersdale WN8
6NT

WLDA is part of the national Community Money
Operating out of
Advice with 9 fully trained debt advisors. Free face Emmanuel Church in
to face debt advice. Offer appropriate debt solution. Ormskirk

School charity
Crane education
foundation

Phone number

Support for people in receipt of benefits
Benefit advice & back into
work support support

Debt advisors

Address

49/51 Westgate, Elson 1695585230
House, Skelmersdale,
West Lancashire,
WN8 8LP

07731 482120
Back Lane Newburgh, 01257 462916
Lancashire WN8 7XB

debtadvice@wlda.org.uk

Learning stars
Skelmersdale action
for youth forum (local
giving)
West lancashire
college

Lancashire lgbt
centre group

Page 876

Lancashire council
of mosques
More Positive
Together

Lancashire west
citizens advice

Children's centre first steps
Children's centre hesketh with
becconsall
Children's centre moorgate
Children's centre park

26 Greenhey Pl,
Skelmersdale WN8
9SA

Education

01695 51888

We have recently designed up to CMA’s Hub
Connect in order to reallocate our work in busy
times so capacity is not an issue presently.

C/o 1 Feltons
Skelmersdale WN8
6RP
Skelmersdale
01695 52300
Campus, College Way,
Education
Skelmersdale WN8
6DX
Support around sexual orientation and gender
C/o Brook Advisory
07788 295521 hello@lancslgbt.org.uk
Centre, 54-56 Darwen
Education
St, Blackburn, BB2
2BL
Religious institution for education and employment, Norwich St, Blackburn 01254 692289
health, crime and antisocial behaviour, media,
BB1 6NZ
Education and employment
quality assurance, young people and families
Education

Education& Training

Supporting people aged 16 - 65 to get job ready
Advice agency for multiple issues

Employment, benefits, debt
etc
Brings agencies together to ensure all issues of a
family are tackled

Eavesdale, Tanhouse, 01695-724873
Skelmersdale,
Lancashire, WN8 6BA

Brings agencies together to ensure all issues of a
family are tackled

Shore Rd, Hesketh
Bank, Preston PR4
6RD
Moorgate, Ormskirk
L39 4RY
Barnes Rd,
Skelmersdale WN8
8HN

Family support

Family support
Family support
Family support

52 Derby St, Ormskirk
L39 2DF
01695 712598 MPT@westlancs.gov.uk
Unit 47, The
0344 245 1294
Concourse Shopping
Centre, Skelmersdale
WN8 6LN

Brings agencies together to ensure all issues of a
family are tackled
Brings agencies together to ensure all issues of a
family are tackled

01772 812630

01695 573470
01695 554535

Children's centre - st
john's children's
centre and extended
school
Children's centre the grove youth,
community &
children's centre

Family support

Family support

Birch Green Rd, Birch
Green, Skelmersdale
WN8 6JJ

01695 559867

Brings agencies together to ensure all issues of a
family are tackled

Station Approach,
Burscough, Ormskirk
L40 0RZ

01772 539680

Supports families with providing baby food, wipes,
possible equipment and clothes
Baby provision support

Lancashire grt
practitioners network

Family Support

Digmoor Community
Centre foodbank

Foodbank

Trussell Trust

Foodbank

Trussell Trust

Foodbank

Lions Club

Furniture providers

Making space
lancashire

health

Access matters

Health care

Page 877

Tippy Toes baby
bank

Barnardo's - young
carers service

Brings agencies together to ensure all issues of a
family are tackled

Health care

Karen Sanderson
Community
Engagement Officer
South Division: West
Lancashire Tel.
Brings agencies together to ensure all issues of a
County Hall,
family are tackled
Fishergate, Preston
PR1 8XB
Assist people in need with food parcels, Community 1 Birleywood,
shop and bedding support
Skelmersdale WN8
9HR
Assist people in need with food parcels
Skelmersdale
Ecumenical
Centre,
Assist people in need with food parcels
Skelmersdale
Ecumenical Centre,
Firbeck, Birch Green,
Skelmersdale WN8
6PN
Charity provides furniture to those most in need
N/A
supporting people in their own home, in their local Primrose Court,
community and with specialist support services.
Primrose Dr,
Blackburn BB1 5BT
Providing sexual and reproductive health care for
Dodpen farm,
teens and adults in need.
fishpond, bridport dt6
6nw
Barnardo's offers support and services to young
109 eaton road,
people aged 7-18 who have a substantial caring
liverpool l12 1lu
role which impacts on their educational, emotional,
physical and/or social development. Support is
offered through befriending, mentoring and outings

7817080873

enquiries@tippytoesbabybank.co.
uk

0300 123 6701

01695 727483

DCC@hotmail.co.uk.

01695 725014
01695 725014

N/A
t.jones.cn@gmail.com
01254 279103

0845 612 1233

0151 228 4455

Housing support
Stonham housing
association

Housing

Deafway

Housing & support

The birchwood
centre

Housing & support

Carers uk

Information and Advice

Disability equality
(nw) ltd
NHS West
Lancashire (NCompass)

Page 878

Ormskirk hard of
hearing association

Information and Advice

Information and support

ensure that people living with hearing loss can find
information, specialist services, and social contact,
in order to live well with hearing loss.

Young people service
Information and Support

Alzheimers society

Mental health

01772 796461
01695 728391

020 7378 4999

info@carersuk.org
01772 558863
0345 688 7113 (option 1)

Mental Health

Mental Health

The Grange,
01844 348111
Wycombe Road,
Saunderton, Princes
Risborough,
Buckinghamshire,
HP27 9NS
Yeadon, skelmersdale, 01695 651350
WN8 6NL

Alzheimer's society is a united kingdom care and
York house wetherby 03303330804
research charity for people with dementia and their road long marston york
carers.
yo26 7nh
10 duke street,
01912620869
liverpool l1 5as · ~3.5
mi
Mental health support

The Ennerdale
Centre

01695 728096

Information and support

The Zone –
Lancashire Youth
Council

RNIB

Skelmersdale
Ecumenical Centre,
Firbeck, Birch Green,
Skelmersdale WN8
6PN
Deaf charity
Brockholes Brow,
Preston PR2 5AL
services for adults and young people, to prevent
64 Heversham, Birch
homelessness, reduce social isolation and improve Green, Skelmersdale
health and well-being.
WN8 6QQ
We give expert advice, information and support.
Carers UK, 20 Great
Dover Street, London
SE1 4LX
Information service centre
103 Church St,
Preston PR1 3BS
Carers support

Ennerdale,
Skelmersdale WN8
6AN

01695 720128

enquiries@hearinglink.org

Neil.Shearer@lancashire.gov.uk

03301240900

01517025700

Wellness & sensory centre
Twinkle house

Mental Health
assist people with learning difficulties get homes,
care and support

West lancs positive
living

Mental Health

Icann (independent
community advocacy
network north)

Mental health and learning
disability

Galloway's society
for the blind

Mental heath

Edge hill university

Money Advice

Page 879

Moving on
lancashire

NEET

Lancashire
community finance

Personal Loans

Drug and Alcohol
Services Skelmersdale
The church at the
centre – Ormskirk
The church at the
centre –
Skelmersdale

Rehabilitation
Religion, family support
Religion, family support

A voice for vulnerable people, especially those who
had disabilities, including Mental Health issues,
Learning Disabilities or were vulnerable due to their
age
Blind chatrity

2 Gorsey Pl,
01695 455625
Skelmersdale WN8
9UP
Suite 201 - 203
01695 666637
Malthouse business
Centre, 48 Southport
Rd, Ormskirk L39 1QR

Howick House, Howick
Park Ave,
Penwortham, Preston
PR1 0LS
Howick House, Howick
Park Ave,
Penwortham, Preston
PR1 0LS
Provides money advice to students of the university St Helens Rd,
Ormskirk L39 4QP
Supports 15-18 year olds who are at risk of
Town Hall, Lancaster
becoming NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Rd, Preston PR1 2RL
Training), those aged 16-18 who are already NEET
are also supported. Young people who have
learning difficulties and/or disabilities (LLDD) are
supported up to the age of 24 if they have an
Education Health and Care (EHC) plan
Provide loans to residents
Skelmersdale
Ecumenical Centre,
Firbeck, Birch Green,
Skelmersdale WN8
6PN
promote recovery from addiction and dependence 75-79 Westgate,
and support people to make positive changes to
Skelmersdale WN8
their lives.
8LP
Religious support
Church St, Ormskirk
L39 3RD
Food bank & family support
Northway, Birch
Green, Skelmersdale
WN8 6LU

01772 746061

01772 744148

01695 575171
01772 906900 info@movingonlancs.co.uk

01772 556877
01695270020

01695 572143
01695 722134

Knowsley Credit
Union

Provide loans to residents
Savings & responsible credit

Sw lancs
independent
community advice
network

Support & advice

ICAN

Support and advice on
welfare and employment
issues

TO ADD OR AMEND
E MAIL
carl.wallace@westla
ncs.gov.uk

Sw lancs independent community advice network

Providing support with welfare and employment
issues

142 Sandy Ln,
Skelmersdale WN8
8LH
Birch Green,
Skelmersdale WN8
6PN
Skelmersdale
Ecumenical Centre,
Firbeck, Birch Green,
Skelmersdale WN8
6PN

0151 545 3380
01695 726269

01695 726269

Page 880

APPENDIX 2

Equality Impact Assessment Form
Directorate: Place & Community
Service: Income and Financial Inclusion
Completed by: Jane Maguire
Date: 04 November 2020
Subject Title: Financial Inclusion Strategy 2021 - 2024
1. DESCRIPTION
Is a policy or strategy being produced or revised:

*delete as appropriate
Yes

Is a service being designed, redesigned or cutback:
No
Is a commissioning plan or contract specification
being developed:

No

Is a budget being set or funding allocated:

Yes

Is a programme or project being planned:

Yes

Are recommendations being presented to senior
managers and/or Councillors:

Yes

Does the activity contribute to meeting our duties
under the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector
Equality Duty (Eliminating unlawful
discrimination/harassment, advancing equality
of opportunity, fostering good relations):
Details of the matter under consideration:

Yes

The Strategy aims to address the issues
contributing to Financial exclusion for tenants
and residents and aims to provide relevant and
appropriate financial inclusion services within
West Lancashire Borough. The document
contains an action plan detailing how to achieve
this

If you answered Yes to any of the above go straight to Section 3
If you answered No to all the above please complete Section 2
2. RELEVANCE
Does the work being carried out impact on service
users, staff or Councillors (stakeholders):
Yes/No*
If Yes, provide details of how this impacts on service
users, staff or Councillors (stakeholders):
If you answered Yes go to Section 3

*delete as appropriate

If you answered No to both Sections 1and 2 provide
details of why there is no impact on these three
groups:
You do not need to complete the rest of this form.
3. EVIDENCE COLLECTION
Who does the work being carried out impact on, i.e.
who is/are the stakeholder(s)?

Financially excluded tenants and residents who
are in debt or suffering from financial hardship
and may be vulnerable and have complex

Page 881

needs

If the work being carried out relates to a universal
service, who needs or uses it most? (Is there any
particular group affected more than others)?

The strategy puts in place measures that will
ensure all residents of West Lancashire will
have access to support and provision with a
focus on those seeking employment, and those
with mental health issues

Which of the protected characteristics are most
relevant to the work being carried out?
Age
Gender
Disability
Race and Culture
Sexual Orientation
Religion or Belief
Gender Reassignment
Marriage and Civil Partnership
Pregnancy and Maternity

*delete as appropriate
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
No
No
No
Yes

4. DATA ANALYSIS
In relation to the work being carried out, and the
service/function in question, who is actually or
currently using the service and why?

There are a range of services provided to
current tenants, new tenants, potentially
homeless and any resident of the borough who
are seeking services to provide advice on
money management and debt.

What will the impact of the work being carried out be
on usage/the stakeholders?

The strategy aims to ensure that services are
widely promoted and locally accessible. That
there is a multi- support agency approach for
those with complex needs and need money
advice services. To tackle digital exclusion and
ensuring that all residents can maximise their
money, access affordable financial products
and can make informed decisions. This will
have a positive impact on the individual and
families, the communities and benefit the
Council through tenancy sustainability and
income collection for rents and council tax. It
will ensure that there are robust services for
financial wellbeing.

What are people’s views about the services? Are
some customers more satisfied than others, and if
so what are the reasons? Can these be affected by
the proposals?

The initial findings and feedback on services
from customers, provider's and stakeholders
demonstrated high levels of satisfaction.
However we will be undertaking a review of
services and more extensive data gathering to
ensure that services are targeted to have a
positive impact on those most in need of the
services

Page 882

What sources of data including consultation results
have you used to analyse the impact of the work
being carried out on users/stakeholders with
protected characteristics?

None

If any further data/consultation is needed and is to
be gathered, please specify:

Further work on the services user provision,
evidence and statistical data to be gathered as
part of the action delivery plan due to impact of
Covid19 and changes to demands.

5. IMPACT OF DECISIONS
In what way will the changes impact on people with
particular protected characteristics (either positively
or negatively or in terms of disproportionate
impact)?

The proposal will have a positive impact by
enabling all residents including those with other
support needs to access supportive debt and
money advice services through various access
point. Supportive debt services and a range of
financial advice services for all residents will
have a positive impact on health and wellbeing.

6. CONSIDERING THE IMPACT
If there is a negative impact what action can be
taken to mitigate it? (If it is not possible or desirable
to take actions to reduce the impact, explain why
this is the case (e.g. legislative or financial drivers
etc.).
What actions do you plan to take to address any
other issues above?

N/A

No actions

7. MONITORING AND REVIEWING
When will this assessment be reviewed and who will
review it?

The EIA will be refreshed when the strategy is
reviewed and updated

Page 883

Agenda Item 7i

AGENDA ITEM:

CABINET: 12 JANUARY 2021
CORPORATE
&
ENVIRONMENTAL
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:
10 DECEMBER 2020

Report of:

Corporate Director of Transformation and Resources

Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor I Moran
Contact for further information: Ms A Grimes (Extn. 3211)
(E-mail: alison.grimes@westlancs.gov.uk)
SUBJECT: QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Q2 2020/21)
Wards affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To present performance monitoring data for the quarter ended 30 September
2020.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CORPORATE & ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

2.1

That the Council’s performance against the indicator set for the quarter ended 30
September 2020 be noted.

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

3.1

That the Council’s performance against the indicator set for the quarter ended 30
September 2020 be noted.

3.2

That the call-in procedure is not appropriate for this item as the report was
submitted to the meeting of the Corporate & Environmental Overview & Scrutiny
Committee on 10 December 2020.

1

Page 885

4.0

CURRENT POSITION

4.1

Members are referred to Appendix A of this report detailing the quarterly
performance data for key performance indicators. The performance information
aims to help demonstrate performance in service-specific information.

4.2

The suite of indicators for 2020/21 includes the quarterly indicators provided in
Appendix A.

4.3

There are 47 items within the quarterly suite. Of the 36 PIs with targets reported:
• 26 indicators met or exceeded target
• 4 indicators narrowly missed target
• 6 were 5% or more off target.
A direct comparison with the same quarter of the previous year is not possible
due to changes in indicators and targets, however performance in Q2 2019/20
gave 24 (from 42) performance indicators on or above target at that time. Due to
the temporary suspension of some SLAs relating to the Revenues and Benefits
Service the number of 'data only' items has increased to 11.

4.4

Performance plans are prepared by service managers for those indicators where
performance falls short of the target by 5% or more for this quarter. These plans
provide the narrative behind the outturn. Progress on actions from previous
Performance Plans where indicators are no longer red are provided in Appendix
C.

4.5

The new Council Plan was agreed at October Council and a revised suite of
indicators will be developed to reflect the new priorities.

6.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACTS

6.1

The information set out in this report aims to help the Council improve service
performance. There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this
report/update and, in particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder.

7.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are no direct financial or resource implications arising from this report.

8.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

This item is for information only and makes no recommendations. It therefore
does not require a formal risk assessment and no changes have been made to
risk registers as a result of this report. Monitoring and managing performance
information data helps the authority to ensure it is achieving its corporate
priorities and key objectives and reduces the risk of not doing so.

2

Page 886

9.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

9.1

There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.
Equality Impact Assessment
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees,
elected members and / or stakeholders. Therefore no Equality Impact Assessment is
required.
Appendices
Appendix A: Quarterly Performance Indicators for Q2 July-September 2020/21
Appendix B: Performance Plans
Appendix C: Actions from Previous Performance Plans

3

Page 887

APPENDIX A: QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
PI Status
OK (within 0.01%) or exceeded

Icon key
26

Performance against same quarter previous year
Improved

20

Warning (within 5%)

4

Worse

Alert (by 5% or more)

6

No change

7

PIs awaiting data

0

Comparison not available

2

Awaiting data for comparison

0

Data only

11

'Data only' awaiting data

Shared Services

/

0

18

Total number of indicators/data items

47

1

Page 888

PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21

Current
Target

Comments

Benchmark2

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

ICT1 Severe Business
Disruption (Priority 1)
(ytd)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

99%

/

ICT2 Minor Business
Disruption (P3) (ytd)

99%

99%

100%

99%

100%

99%

100%

100%

97%

/

ICT3 Major Business
Disruption (P2) (ytd)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

98%

/

ICT4 Minor Disruption
(P4) (ytd)

99%

99%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

98%

/

B1 Time taken to process
Housing Benefit/Council
Tax Support new claims
and change events (days)

6.41

6.16

6.11

7.37

7.79

7.73

17.63

17.37

12.00

B2 Overpayment
Recovery of Housing
Benefit overpayments
(payments received)

£270,313 £370,939 £104,163 £186,937 £282,724 £377,501 £52,607 £95,842

4

£94,430

Updated Performance Plan
attached at Appendix B1.

/

/

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

Quarter
Status

PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Value

R1 % of Council Tax
collected

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Current
Target

Decisions taken by the council in
support of residents and
businesses with regards to COVID
have severely impacted revenue
collection activity. Previously
agreed targets on all recovery
SLAs have therefore been replaced
for monitoring purposes with the
mean average across Lancashire.

83.81% 96.46% 28.96% 56.04% 83.52% 96.29% 27.55% 53.74%

R2 % council tax previous
21.85% 25.88%
years arrears collected

8.1%

13.74% 20.02% 23.68%

4.66%

Benchmark2

Comments

L

Quarter
Status

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

Quarter
Status

19/20 Lower
Quartile

19.76%

As above

R3 % of Business Rates
Collected (NNDR)

81.05% 98.22% 29.65% 56.14% 80.98% 98.02% 24.16% 49.13%

As above

R4 Sundry Debtors % of
revenue collected against
debt raised

87.41% 96.95% 51.95% 75.49% 89.93% 94.36% 29.26% 73.61%

As above

/

Current
Target

Comments

Benchmark2

Page 889

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

/
L

19/20 Second
Quartile

Housing & Regulatory Services
PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Value

Value

TS1a Rent collected from
current and former
tenants as a % of rent
owed (excluding arrears
b/f).

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

TS11 % of rent loss
through dwellings being

1.01%

0.94%

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

104.53

100.55

102.53

101.74

101.12

99.37

100.04

Performance is below target as
cash collection has been impacted
by COVID 19. There has been a
10% increase in UC claims, which
results in delayed payments to the
customer and therefore their ability
to pay. Of the tenants on UC, 35%
are on direct payments. Officers
have negotiated amended and
reduced payment agreements to
avoid hardship during the
pandemic.

0.7%

0.72%

0.79%

0.87%

1.36%

1.45%

0.99%

Updated Performance Plan attached
at Appendix B2.

5

H

19/20 Upper
Quartile

H

19/20

PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Current
Target

Comments

vacant

Benchmark2
Second
Quartile

The data reflects around 14
properties. The contractor has a full
risk assessed method of working
within tenants homes. The annual
gas appliance servicing letters are
being posted in sufficient time for
the anniversary date to be met.

Page 890

HS27 % of properties
with a valid Landlord Gas
Safety Record (homes
and buildings)

HS28 % of properties
with a valid Electrical
Installation Condition
Report (homes and
buildings)

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

99.5%

99.74%

Where access is not provided and
the anniversary date is not met
there is a full audit trail of no
access letters and notices seeking
possession served along with
100.0%
engineers' abortive visits. Warning
flags on the properties within the
housing management system alert
staff of the need for access.

/

In addition all properties without a
valid LGSR are 'cold called' outside
of 'normal office hours' [evening
and weekends] to see if access can
be
gained
this
way.
Future
performance also dependent on the
court
services
being
fully
operational and further lockdowns.

96.0%

98.8%

95.1%

95.4%

97.2%

97.6%

97.5%

98.7%

6

Wates Property Services began
delivering the EICR programme
from April 2020. The high access
refusal rate across the social
housing sector due to COVID had
shown improvement. The
100.0% contractor has a full risk assessed
method of working within tenants
homes. Wates are now on target
with their main EICR objectives.
They are starting to target the out
of date properties in Q3 and Q4.

/

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

Quarter
Status

PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Current
Target

Comments

Benchmark2

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

Quarter
Status

Where access is not provided and
the anniversary date is not met
there is a full audit trail of no
access letters and notices seeking
possession served along with
engineers' abortive visits. Warning
flags on the properties within the
housing management system alert
staff of the need to gain access.
Based on experience of the first
lockdown we will see increased no
access again during the lockdown
from 5 November.
HS29 % non-domestic
that require an asbestos
management survey/reinspection

100.0%

/

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

100.0%

/

HS31 % of properties
covered by water hygiene
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
risk assessment (homes
and buildings)

100.0%

/

Page 891

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

HS30 % of non-domestic
properties with fire risk
assessment in place

99.7%

HS32 % emergency
repairs completed on time

100.0% 100.0%

99.4%

N/A - PI not developed at this time

100%

100%

100%

Data relating to contractual KPIs
are reported at monthly
Operational and Core meetings.

/

/

Current
Target

Comments

Benchmark2

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

98.75%

Relates to total payment for over
5,700 invoices

/

Corporate & Customer Services
PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Value

BV8 % invoices paid on
time

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

97.85% 98.59% 98.99% 98.49% 97.73% 98.21% 96.70% 97.89%

7

Quarter
Status

PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Value

WL85a Website: no. visits
3

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Current
Target

152,659 167,748 202,891 115,041 144,440 186,128 174,099 143,104

Comments

Benchmark2

One of the most popular pages
this quarter was Fairy Glen as
residents checked whether the site
was open (total visits 16,041)

/

/

/

3,429

2,190

10,996

7,195

4,239

4,150

28,451

7,450

WL85c Website: No. of
payments processed
online

12,943

13,065

21,067

17,820

14,092

12,011

33,173

16,849

Q2 has returned to the normal
pattern following the peak of
online garden waste subscription.

WL90 % of Contact
Centre calls answered

87.7%

61.6%

76.1%

84.6%

92.2%

93.4%

95.6%

96.4%

88.0%

/

117

326

185

141

82

74

37

36

145

/

10,085

20,794

22,861

24,734

32,072

34,786

Page 892

WL85b Website: no.
online forms submitted

Q2 follows the annual trend with a
dip in online forms as most of the
garden waste subscriptions are for
Q1. However, 5,920 is within
ServiceNow demonstrating the
strong shift towards self service.

WL108 Average answered
waiting time for callers to
the contact centre
(seconds)
WL130 No. Service Now
Customer Accounts

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

WL131 No. Social Media
Followers (WLBC FB,
Twitter)

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

7,167

7,660

8,115

9,567

10,865

11,584

WL132 FTE working days
lost due to sickness
absence per average FTE

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

2.38

2.95

2.55

2.59

1.94

1.51

N/A - PI not
WL143 % of external calls
developed at this
to back office answered
time

85%

85%

84%

82%

74%

81%

8

/

11,408

Although the Council's Facebook
followers are increasing at a
higher rate, Twitter still remains
the main platform for followers
with 6,238 followers

/

2.02

Updated Performance Plan
progress attached at Appendix C.

/

Relates to over 44K attempted
calls into back office.

/

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

Quarter
Status

Environmental Services
PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Current
Target

Comments

Benchmark2

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

3

6

7

7

4

7

7

/

ES02 No. grass cuts
undertaken in Sheltered
Accommodation between
April-October

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

3

7

9

9

4

7

7

/

ES04 % locations
inspected falling into
categories A/B - Litter
(cumulative)

N/A - PI not
developed at this 98.31% 98.74% 98.99% 99.15% 99.81% 100.00%
time

90.00%

Period reported is cumulative to
July.

ES06 % locations
inspected falling into
categories A/B - Dog
Fouling (cumulative)

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

90.00%

As above

ES08 % locations
inspected falling into
categories A/B - grounds
maintenance (includes
grass and shrubbery)
(cumulative)

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

N/A

N/A

N/A

92.53%

100.00% 99.80% 85.00%

As above

ES11 % locations
inspected falling into
categories C/D - Detritus
(cumulative)

N/A - PI not
developed at this 04.41% 05.30% 04.94% 04.16% 00.39% 03.04%
time

10.00%

As above

ES07 % locations
inspected falling into
categories C/D Overflowing Litter Bins
(cumulative)

N/A - PI not
developed at this 08.70% 12.50% 12.12% 10.53% 00.00% 02.22%
time

10.00%

Updated Performance Plan
attached at Appendix C.
Period reported is cumulative to
September.

ES14 Average of missed
bins per fortnight
(recycling / green)

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

1314

53

104

102

61

65

50

Updated Performance Plan
attached at Appendix B3.

/

ES15 Average of missed
bins per fortnight

N/A - PI not
developed at this

1314

49

123

122

76

77

50

As above

/

Page 893

ES01 No. grass cuts
undertaken on the
highway between AprilOctober

100.00%

9

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

A

Q2 20/21
Top quartile
A

Q2 20/21
Top quartile

A

Q2 20/21
Second quartile

A

Q2 20/21
Second quartile

A

Q2 20/21
Second quartile

/

Quarter
Status

PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Value

Comments

Benchmark2

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

ES16 Average of missed
N/A - PI not
bins per fortnight (garden developed at this
waste / brown)
time

41

55

75

67

68

100

50

As above

/

ES17 Average of missed
bins per fortnight (refuse
/ grey)

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

66

58

136

172

73

91

50

As above

/

ES18 Flytip incidents
reported

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

338

345

263

337

343

541

NI191 Kerbside residual
household waste per
household (Kg)

120.55

118.91

136.35

144.36

144.26

85.135

82.1

(recycling / blue)

Value

Current
Target

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

Quarter
Status

time

122.11

/

52.50%5 53.20% 50.00%

WL122 % Vehicle
Operator Licence
Inspections Carried Out
within 6 Weeks

100%

Page 894

NI192 Percentage of
kerbside household waste
43.00% 40.21% 49.31% 43.37% 37.42% 35.07%
sent for reuse, recycling
and composting
100%

100%

100%

98.72%

100%

100%

100%

L

2018/19
Third quartile

125

L

Updated Performance Plan
2018/19
progress attached at Appendix C. Second quartile

100%

/

Growth & Development Services
PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21

Current
Target

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

NI 157a Processing of
planning applications:
Major applications

88.89%

100%

100%

92.86%

100%

85.71%

100%

100%

NI 157b Processing of
planning applications:
Minor applications

90.16% 86.79% 84.48% 93.55% 86.27% 84.91% 85.96% 90.00%

80.00%

NI 157c Processing of
planning applications:

95.27% 90.68% 93.62% 90.78% 87.97% 92.50% 91.38% 96.75%

85.00%

10

75.00%

Comments

Benchmark2
L

2018/19
Upper quartile
The Planning Service will undergo
a Service Review planned to start
L
in the autumn. As part of this
2018/19
processes and PIs including
Second quartile
targets will be reviewed.
L
2018/19
Second quartile

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

Quarter
Status

PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Current
Target

Comments

Benchmark2

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

Current
Target

Comments

Benchmark2

Q2 20/21
vs
Q2 19/20

No activities due to Covid19

/

Quarter
Status

Other applications

Wellbeing & Leisure Services
PI Code & Short Name

Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Value

HW01 No. attending
health, wellbeing and
sport activities & courses

Value

N/A - PI not
developed at this
time

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

3,712

3,238

2,292

1,892

0

0

Quarter
Status

Page 895

Notes:
1 Managed through LCC/BTLS contract. Contractual targets are annual. Quarter targets are provided as a gauge for performance only. ICT data
and RBS data reflect progress to year end.
2 Annual benchmarking information is provided as an indication of the Councils performance compared with other Councils. Most PIs are locally
developed and therefore do not have comparison data. Where the Council is a member of a benchmarking group (a APSE 'Whole service', H
Housemark Peer Group) that source is used (and may provide more current comparison data) otherwise information is taken from published
sources in L LGA Inform against All English District Local Authorities. Data periods available for comparison due to collection and verification
mechanisms and comparator groups are therefore dependent on the information source and may therefore have a delay before the previous
year is available.
3 WL85a Website: no. visits Q2 19/20 - Due to a change in data collection technology data collected between 21 August to 10 October is not
complete. The issue has been resolved.
4 ES14 & 15: Q1 19/20 reflected outturn for both blue and green bins. The data is split for Q2 19/20 onwards.
5 A review of performance data gathering and process within the new Environmental Services team identified that the categorisation and coding
detail used for all waste collections had not previously been used to its full capacity. Refined coding has been used for Q1 submissions onwards.
Previous quarter data cannot be retrospectively assessed to bring it into line with the improved categorisation.

11

APPENDIX B1
PERFORMANCE PLAN
Indicator

B1 Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax Support new claims and
change events

Reason(s) for not meeting target
Impact from increased benefits workload as a result of COVID 19
Additional commentary / background
The outturn for Q2 is 17.37 days against a target of 12. As a result of COVID, the service continues
to receive an unprecedented increase in the volume of claims which impacts on performance.
Month on month increases are seen in CTS claims received with the working age caseload. During
September, there were approximately 900 more changes than in comparison to September of last
year and more new claims were processed. New claims received in 2020 to date have increased by
around 45% in comparison to the same period last year; Change of Circumstances received
increased by around 10%.
The increase in Universal Credit backlog claims received via the DWP also continues to impact on
the performance of the Benefit Service. Although the service is processing these claims in a timely
fashion once received, the effective start dates registered with the DWP at first point of claim are
used in the calculation of the claim time which continue in many cases to date back many weeks,
hence impacting on the overall time taken to process.
Proposed actions

We will continue to monitor and resource plan accordingly to best meet the increased Benefits
workload. This includes having staff work overtime and at weekends to help deal with the increasing
work volumes and where necessary reduce backlogs.
As a result of this management to date, we have seen a marginal reductions in the number of days
by Q2 (17.37) from 17.63 in Q1 despite continuously increasing volumes. This will remain a key
focus of service delivery as we aspire to improve performance in this area over the coming months.
It should be noted however that that potential further increases in claims and possibly backlogs are
anticipated as a result of the impact of the second national lockdown.

Resource implications
As outlined above
Priority
Resources are being prioritised to mitigate impact.
Future targets Target is a contractual annual SLA. Quarter targets are provided as a gauge for
performance only. No change currently planned.
Action plan
Completion due date
Tasks to be undertaken
Managing resource to help improve performance Action is currently being implemented.
includes staff working overtime and at weekends.
Page
12 896

APPENDIX B2

PERFORMANCE PLAN
Indicator

TS11 - % rent loss through dwellings being vacant

Reason(s) for not meeting target
Change over from previous response maintenance and void contractor to new provider compounded
by COVID19 pandemic and introduction of national lockdown in March 2020.
Additional commentary / background
From the 1st April 2020 response and void maintenance switched from DLP Services Ltd to Wates
Property Services Ltd [WPSL]. Due to the government response to the COVID19 pandemic all void
work was suspended in March which meant that WPSL inherited a back log of void properties which
could not be worked on until movement restrictions were eased and safe methods of working
developed to ensure social distancing measures were adhered to for both the council's surveying
staff, WPSL staff and operatives and potential tenants viewing properties.
Included in the development of safe method of working is a quarantine period which includes
provision of deep cleaning prior to and after works start / complete – this has extended the period
void properties remain empty.
Proposed actions
•

Quarantine period has been revised downwards to 5 working days and the contract KPI's
amended so that all void properties received from the 1st July are to be delivered within the
contract performance criteria [subject to no further national or local lockdowns being
introduced]

•

For the backlog of properties inherited by WPSL there is an action plan in place with each
property assigned a date for its return back to the Council. Performance is monitored on a
weekly basis and reported to the Head of Housing and Regulatory Services at the end of
each week.

Improvement expected: Backlog properties inherited by WPSL are all now complete. Performance
for void properties received from the 1st July, which fall under the contract KPI matrix continue to be
monitored through the monthly contract operational meetings which are subsequently reported up to
the Director of Place and Community and Head of Housing and Regulatory Services. Head of
Housing and Regulatory Services also receives a weekly snap shot of void performance from the
Property Services Manager.
Resource implications no impact on staff resources however additional costs are being incurred
regarding the requirement to undertake deep cleans to void properties – this is being managed
within the central COVID19 budget.
Priority High
Future targets void performance for properties received from the 1st July 2020 will be monitored
and managed through the contract KPI's which are reported on a monthly basis – however these
may change if national or local lockdowns are introduced to manage further outbreaks of COVID19.
Action plan
Tasks to be undertaken
Proposed actions as outlined above

Completion due date
Further performance update to be provided in Q3
reports.

Page 897

13

APPENDIX B3

Indicator

PERFORMANCE PLAN
ES14: Average of missed bins per fortnight (recycling green - paper & cardboard)
ES15: Average of missed bins per fortnight (recycling blue - comingled)
ES16: Average of missed bins per fortnight (recycling brown - garden waste)
ES17: Average of missed bins per fortnight (refuse/grey)

Reason(s) for not meeting target
The target has not been achieved for Q2 2020/21.
The Q4 2019/20 performance plan committed to improvements by Q3 however due to restrictive
ways of working during COVID with the introduction of additional ancillary vehicles for social
distancing the current PI's cannot be achieved as performance monitoring of individual team
performance is unable to be undertaken.
A second Waste Management Loader travelling to site independently, parking and re-parking a
vehicle numerous times during the productive working hours to keep up with the Refuse
Collection Fleet Vehicle has detrimentally impacted upon a controlled performance by teams.
The current situation is continually monitored however due to H&S advice and industry guidance
it is not possible at this time to withdraw the use of additional vehicles.
The focus at the time is to maintain the morale of the teams and ensure all control measures are
in place as a duty of care to those individuals and in doing so protect the resource to enable
continued service delivery.
Additional Commentary and proposed actions
Due to restrictive ways of working during COVID, these performance indicators cannot be
achieved.
Resource Implications –
Priority –
Future Targets - No change to current target of 50 missed bins per fortnight per waste stream
during this financial year. PI presentation will be fully reviewed for 2021/22.
Action Plan
Tasks to be undertaken

Completion Date

Monitor control measures, review risk assessments, if On-going
additional vehicles can be withdrawn as per industry
guidance and H&S advice, former performance
monitoring processes will be resumed. Not currently
possible to benchmark performance.

14

Page 898

ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS PERFORMANCE PLANS

APPENDIX C

Indicator

Page 899

Task
Tasks to be undertaken
Completion Progress
created
Date
following
Q
NI192: Percentage of Q4 19/20 Contact high performing LA's to July 2020 Complete. New employee has been fully committed to
kerbside household
discuss best practice
promoting the Garden Waste Collection Service. High
success rate for subscribers, predominately via online
waste sent for reuse,
recycling
and
facility. The contacting of other LA's commenced in
composting
September 2020.
Identify areas of low recycling September Complete. Underway and ongoing.
participation
2020
Develop & deliver promotional October Complete. Underway and ongoing.
campaigns
2020
onwards
ES07 % of locations Q4 19/20 Place order for 53 litter bins to June 2020 Complete. Order placed August for delivery date of 53
Installation contractor has been engaged, locations identified
inspected falling into
replace those identified as
from condition survey last year.
categories C/D –
category C or D in condition survey
Overflowing
Litter
Bins
Agree locations with provider for July 2020 Following discussion with Portfolio Holder, this trial will
trial of compaction bins (timescale
be postponed until Spring 2021 as some of the bins will
could be impacted by COVID
be in areas of high footfall and the data gathered may
restrictions for installation)
not be fully reflective given that footfall remains lower
than normal at present. It would be questionable data
being gathered and not provide a true representation. A
RoD will be produced to reflect this. Locations will still
be agreed with provider by Sept/Oct 2020 dependent
upon their availability but actual trial will be delayed.
Corporate & Environmental O&S Committee have
sought further information regarding this project. This
will be discussed in further detail with the Portfolio
Holder.
15

Comment

Outturn for Q2 is
53.2% (Green)

Outturn for Q2 is
2.22% (Green)

Commence
anti-littering August 2020
campaigns / educational and
promotional activities utilising
support materials from partner
agencies such as Keep Britain Tidy
and Hubbub
WL132 FTE working Q4 19/20
days lost due to
sickness absence per
average FTE

Produce an Action Plan to
address findings around staff
wellbeing from the joint ICT and
Staff wellbeing survey.

Page 900

Complete. The first Clean Up campaign took place in
September and is the Keep Britain Tidy Great British
September Clean.
Other campaigns will follow
accordingly. Newly appointed Clean & Green Operations
Manager is now in post, and the first anti-littering
campaign is being devised. Topic suggested by the
Environmental Enforcement Team – disposable face
masks.
3 months Complete. Responses identified no major issues. A full Outturn for Q2 is
from issue analysis and detailed plan was produced and will now be 1.51 (Green)
of survey implemented through a multidisciplinary Health &
Wellbeing working group and supported by the Health &
Wellbeing Champions. The plan includes improvements
for wellbeing such as improved Catch up meetings,
additional training to support remote working and
management of remote teams through eLearning, and
additional mental health support signposting. 16 staff
have been trained as Mental Health First Aiders and the
service promoted to staff. Staff were sent information
signposting to resources to mark World Mental Health
Day and Stress Awareness Day. 120 Flu vaccination
vouchers have been distributed for staff and those staff
without a voucher and ineligible for a free jab from their
GP are able to purchase vaccinations and then be
refunded.

Performance plans often include actions which, by the time of publication, have already been completed and/or become part of the day to day
ongoing operations of a service. The above table details those actions from Performance Plans in previous quarters that contained a future
implementation date.

16

Minute of the Corporate & Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee
– 10 December 2020

112

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Q2 2020/21)
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director
Transformation and Resources as contained on pages 115 to 130 of the
Book of Reports, which presented performance monitoring data for the
quarter ended 30 September 2020.
The Partnership and Performance Officer provided an update on the latest
key performance indicators. She explained that 26 indicators met or
exceeded target.
Questions and comments were raised in respect of the following indicators:
TS1a – Rent collected from current and former tenants as a % of rent owed
(excluding arrears b/f)
This was below target due to the impact of Covid-19, a full explanation was
presented at Appendix A.
ES18 – Fly tip incidents reported
A significant increase was noted, up by 57% this quarter.
A comment was raised in respect of the closure of the tips managed by
LCC during Covid -19.
It was also questioned if a breakdown of data is available of the 541 fly-tip
incidents reported, in respect of identifying culprits and sanctions posed.
The Partnership and Performance Officer made an undertaking to present
the data to Members by e-mail.
NI157a, b, c - Processing of Planning Applications
The Planning Service Review is now underway by Red Quadrant.
The Corporate Director Transformation and Resources gave a brief outline,
explaining that the process will involve the customer experience / journey
and that the Service will have more digital arrangements in place.
It was suggested by the Chairman that as part of Member Development, it
would be beneficial for all Members to be offered a briefing of the Planning
Service Review process.
HW01 – No. attending health, wellbeing and sport activities and courses
Discussion took place on the effect of the impact on youth unable to attend
clubs and activities due to Covid-19 restrictions and regulations in place.
B1 – Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax Support new
claims and change events (days)
Impact due to increased workload as a result of Covid-19, as detailed at
Appendix B1.
ES14,15,16,17 (Average missed bins per fortnight)

Page 901

Due to restrictive ways of working during Covid, there is no change to the
current target of 50 missed bins per fortnight per waste stream. This target
is to be reviewed in 2021/22.
The Chairman proposed that an e-mail be sent on behalf of the Members of
Corporate and Environmental Overview and Scrutiny Committee to all
Employees of the Council to give thanks and recognition of the hard work
and dedication given during this year.
RESOLVED:

A. That the Council's performance against the indicator set
for the quarter ended 30 September 2020 be noted.
B. That an e-mail be sent on
Corporate & Environmental
Committee to all Employees
thanks and recognition for
dedication during this year.

Page 902

behalf of Members of
Overview and Scrutiny
of the Council to give
their hard work and

Agenda Item 9a

Document is Restricted

Page 903

Document is Restricted

Page 907

Document is Restricted

Page 917

Agenda Item 9b

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 921

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 927

